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OUR MISSION

We have highlighted the mission of “invest for a better life”, integrated the suc

new management team into current operations, and adhered to the “customer:
oriented, environmental friendly, result driven” philosophy, thus promoting
development. This is proved that we proactively responded to stakeholders’ conce
persisted with repaying investors’ trust with increasing returns and looking for go
will expand our business to other sectors that would have good opportunities. We e
of quality products and considerate services to our customers, kept our promise to
heed to their concerns, created a home-alike working environment and a broad dev
and proactively engaged in social welfare in return for the support and understanding
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRBES

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of China
Sinostar Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and all
of its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2017 to the

Shareholders.

Without a doubt,
financial year of 2017 remained complicated and uncertain. It

the global market and economy in the

was not only the unanticipated political environment abroad and
also the fluctuation in the foreign currency. However, even if
Renminbi was undergone some large wings of depreciation, the
GDP growth rate of China still recorded as 6.9% in first quarter
of 2017, being the fastest in the world. Having considered
the sustainable economic development in the PRC, the Board
is optimistic towards the market in the PRC and intends to
continue to place emphasis on strengthen its trading business,
properties investment business and renewable energy business in
the PRC.

For the past three years, the Group has been actively seeking
for potential opportunities to diversify its business portfolio
by exploring various investment and development in different
sectors so as to strengthen the revenue stream of the Group and
to enhance the shareholders’ value.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, on one hand, the Group
continued to focus on three core businesses, namely i) the
design and sale of wide range of electronic products ii)
properties investment and iii) operation and management of
hydroelectric power stations. The segment results of the above
three sectors maintained healthy and were gradually improved.
On the other hand, the Group leveraged the experience on its
management and controlling shareholder in the PRC to explore
the new business opportunity in the sale and installation of
the elevators during the year ended 31 March 2017. The
new business line contributed for 27% and amounted for
HK$169,990,000 of the total revenue of the Group throughout
the financial year of 2017. With the contribution of the
management and the employees, the turnover of the Group
reached to HK$632,015,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017,
representing an increase of 49% as compared to the previous
year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHRESE

Looking ahead into 2017/2018, the Board expects that there will
be challenges and uncertainties towards the overall economy
and industries. However, the Board will make good use on
the extensive experience and network of its management
and controlling shareholder to explore potential business
opportunities, adopt stringent cost controls by streamlining
business operations and optimising utilization, strengthen and
enhance the business relationship with suppliers and customers,
stringently implement and advance the business model and
strategies, the Board is in confidence to embrace the challenges
and making a return to profitability.

Lastly, I would like to thank my fellow Directors, senior
management and all our staff for their performance and support
during the year. | would also like to thank all our Shareholders,
suppliers, business partners and customers, whose supports have
contributed our success in the past year.

By the order of the Board
Wang Jing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B WD

BUSINESS REVIEW

It has been the Group’s business strategy to diversify its
business and to broaden the revenue streams of the Group so
as to enhance the shareholders’ value. Apart from the ordinary
businesses in the design and sale of a wide range of electronic
products, operation and management of hydroelectric power
stations and properties investment, the Group further expanded
its business into the sales and installation of elevators for the
year ended 31 March 2017. As a result, the Group recorded
a turnover of HK$632,015,000 for the year ended 31 March
2017,
previous year. The gross profit of the Group was increased
from HK$103,045,000 for the year ended 31 March 2016 to
HK$162,792,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017. The loss for
the year ended 31 March 2017 was mainly due to some one-off

representing an increase of 49% as compared to the

items like impairment loss on goodwill of HK$34,027,000,
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment of
HK$2,935,000 and the impairment loss on investment in an
associate of HK$3,751,000. By excluding such effect, the Group
would record a profit of HK$1,707,000 for the year ended 31
March 2017. As a result, the loss for the year ended 31 March
2017 was HK$39,006,000 (2016: HK$15,999,000).

Design and Sale of Electronic Products

The turnover of the design and sale of electronic products was
increased from HK$425,523,000 for the year ended 31 March
2016 to HK$457,858,000 for the year ended 31 March 2017.
The segment results recorded a profit of HK$8,313,000 as
compared to the loss of HK$2,683,000 for the year ended 31
March 2016. A large proportion of the electronic products were
sold to the wholesalers in United States, Canada and Europe.
Despite the slightly increase in the segment results, the Board
will take a cautious approach towards the current foreign market

conditions and the uncertainties that may be raised.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFWED

Sales and Installation of Elevators

From the second half year of 2016, the Group has enlarged
and widened the scale and the scope of its trading business
into the sales and installation of elevators. By leveraging the
extensive experience and the network of the management, the
Group established a good relationship with sizeable contractors
and suppliers in the PRC and started the sales and installation
of elevators specializing in residential and commercial projects.
As a result, the revenue generated from the sales and
installation of elevators for the year ended 31 March 2017
was HK$169,990,000, accounting for approximately 27% of
the total revenue of the Group.
of HK$33,069,000 was recorded for the year ended 31 March

2017.

In addition, a segment profit

Properties Investment

For the year ended 31 March 2017,
properties investment performed weakly and recorded a loss of
HK$28,315,000 as compared to the profit of HK$4,348,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2016. The decrease of the segment

the segment of the

result was mainly due to the decrease in fair value of investment

properties.

Operation and management of hydroelectric power stations

During the years of 2016 and 2017, the Group has acquired the
entire equity interest of two companies which engaging in the
operation and management of hydroelectronic power stations
in the PRC. For the year ended 31 March 2017,
HK$4,167,000 and segment profit of HK$419,000 were recorded
as a result of the operation and management of the two

revenue of

hydroelectric power stations. In light of the increasing concerns
towards the global warming and the demand of clean and
renewable energy, the Board believes that the development in
renewable energy will generate a steady and sustainable income
for the Group in the long run.

Securities Trading

The Group recorded a segment profit of HK$17,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2017 due to the increase in fair value of
investment held for trading.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWED T

PROSPECT

Looking forward, the Group will continue devoting effort on
formulating the long-term business strategies and will also
prudently explore new business opportunities so as to strengthen
and broaden the revenue stream of the Group and generate a
better result and prospect for the Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2017, bank balances and cash has decreased to
HK$34,442,000 as compared to HK$249,130,000 as at 31 March
2016.

As at 31 March 2017, gearing ratio calculated as 0.32, excluding
March 2016: 0.35).
the Group’s gearing ratio represents the decrease of the debt

convertible bonds (31 The decrease of
portion at the year end. The management utilized the gearing
platform in order to further develop its business.

The current ratio of the Group is lower than last year, it
decreased from 1.60 to 1.23. Although the current ratio
decreased in the current year, it is still greater than 1 and keeps
at a healthy level.

Financing and Capital Structure

The total borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2016 and
31 March 2017 were HK$119,903,000 and HK$99,500,000
respectively. There was a note payable at the amount of
HK$5,932,000 as at 31 March 2016 and none of the note
payable was recorded as at 31 March 2017. The Group’s
borrowings are in US dollars and Renminbi and at a fixed-rate
borrowing and bear average interest rate of 10% per annum
(2016: 8.5%).

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group’s transactions
were mostly denominated in US dollars, Hong Kong dollars,
Renminbi and Canadian dollars. The Group did not have
significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation as the
management monitors the related foreign currencies closely and
will consider hedging for significant foreign currency exposure, if

necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFWED

Update on use of proceeds from the Placing of new shares

With reference to the announcements of the Company dated 14
July 2015 and 30 July 2015 (the “Announcements”) in relation
to the placing of new shares of the Company (the “Placing”)
and (ii) the Company’s annual report (the “Annual Report”) for
the year ended 31 March 2016 published on 28 July 2016.

As disclosed in the Announcements, the net proceeds from the
Placing were HK$59,400,000 and are intended to be used for (i)
possible opportunities for the development of renewable energy
business; and (ii) general working capital of the Group.

As at the date of this annual report, the net proceeds from
the Placing of (i) approximately HK$38,400,000 had been
applied for the development of renewable energy business
and (ii) approximately HK$9,000,000 had been applied as
general working capital of the Group. The remaining proceeds
of approximately HK$12,000,000 which had not been utilised
would be used as intended and had been maintained at a bank
as at the date of this annual report.

Pledge of Assets

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the general credit
facilities granted to the Group and the margin accounts with
securities brokers are secured by an investment property under
construction of HK$168,546,000 (2016: HK$188,967,000),
deposits with securities brokers of HK$Nil (2016: HK$32,000)
and investment held for trading of HK$380,000 (2016:

HK$451,000).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFWED

MATERIAL ACQUISITION DURING THE
YEAR

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group entered into
an equity transfer agreement with a company established in
the PRC to acquire the entire interest of a company, namely
Benxi Manchu Autonomous County Fujia Hydropower Company
Limited* (A Z Wik B8 BN KK #EEFR 2 A, which is
engaged in the operation and management of a hydroelectric
power station in Benxi City, Liaoning Province, the PRC. The
acquisition was completed in September 2016.

Details of the above acquisition are disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 23 August 2016.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017,
the Group expanded its business into renewable energy and
completed two acquisitions to acquire the entire interest of
two companies, namely Benxi Weining Hydropower Company
Limited* A ZWMEZE /K HEEBR 2 A (please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 24 March 2016 for
more details) and Benxi Manchu Autonomous County Fujia
Hydropower Company Limited* (N ZEmikERBRNRKNEE
R 7]), which are established in the PRC and engaged in the
operation and management of a hydroelectric power station in
Benxi City, Liaoning Province, the PRC. With a review on the
financial performance on the renewable energy business, the
Board believes that the development in the renewable energy
business will continue to generate a steady and substantial
income for the Group and benefit the Group in the long run.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Material Acquisition
During The Year”, the Group did not have any significant
investment held for the year ended 31 March 2017.

* for identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFWED

FUTURE PLANS RELATING TO MATERIAL
INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSET

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Material Acquisition
During the Year” in this section, the Group has not executed
any legal binding agreements in respect of material investment
or capital assets and did not have any other further plans
relating to material investment or capital assets as at the date of

this annual report.

Relationships with Customers and Suppliers

Customers

The Group believes that customers’ commitment is the key
variable to the success of the business. To build up a trust
relationship with its customers, the Group is committed to
provide a steady supply of quality and customized products to
its customers. Moreover, members of the Group’s management
team communicate with its major customers and marketing
teams on a regular basis and to understand their expectations of
the customers and to respond to their requirements and needs.
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board considered
that the Group has maintained a good relationship with its

customers.

Suppliers

The Group has been nurtured to build up good and long-
term relationships with its suppliers, based on the mutual trust
and commitment. The Group maintains an approved list of the
suppliers in which the admission is subject to the assessment of
their background, quality and quantity of the products, prices
and response to the suggestions and customers’ feedback, the
management team will review and update the list from time to
time. During the year, the Board considered that the Company
has maintained a good business relationship with our suppliers
and no material delay or dispute related to them causing
disruption to its operations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFWED

Employee and remuneration

The Company believes that its employees are the most valuable
asset of the Group. In order to recruit and retain the employees,
the Company offers remuneration packages at a competitive
level and reviews on a regular basis. The Company also provides
staff benefits such as insurance, retirement scheme and training
programs to its employees to establish a healthy and safety
working environment. To recognise the contributions of its
employees, the Company offers discretionary bonus to the
employees and senior management by reference to the Group's

performance as well as the individual performance.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had a total employees 70 of
which 55 were employed in the overseas. The total remuneration
of the employees was HK$27,627,000 for the year ended 31
March 2017.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries
purchased, or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2017.

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2017.

SIGNIFICANT EVENT

Change of Company Name

In October 2016, the name of the Company was changed from
“Shihua Development Company Limited” to “China Sinostar
Group Company Limited” and adopted the Chinese name “F &
EEEBARAF" as the secondary name of the Company.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jing, aged 62, is the executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board of the Company. He is a vice chairman
of Liaoning Federation of Industry and Commerce (EZEE T
EHLEHIED)
in 2006, and a member of People’s Congress of Benxi City (&
EHARKR).
he had been appointed as the general manager of Liaoning
Shihua Group (EZEEZEL£E) (“Liaoning Shihua Group”) since

April 2007. He currently acts as the chairman of Liaoning Shihua

¥4 ), a Liaoning Province Model Worker (2

He has founded Liaoning Shihua Property and

Group. He has also been an executive member of the Property
Development Industry Association of Liaoning Province (EE 4 5
WETEHEEFIEE) since March 2012, In February 2014, Mr.
Wang was awarded as “Liaoning Province Excellent Builder” (&
BHEFEFZE) by various organisations including the Liaoning
United Front Work Department of the Chinese Communist Party
(P HEBEE L HE ). Mr. Wang did not hold any directorship in
other listed companies in the last three years. Mr. Wang Jing is
the father of Mr. Wang Xing Qiao, an executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Mr. Wang Xing Qiao, aged 29, is the executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Wang graduated in
the University of Toronto with a bachelor’'s degree in commerce
with high distinction in 2009. He also obtained a master of
philosophy degree in finance from the Judge Business School
of the University of Cambridge in 2010. He is currently the
deputy general manager of Liaoning Shihua Group and is also
the Shenyang regional general manager of Liaoning Shihua
Group. Mr. Wang did not hold any directorship in other listed
He is the son of Mr.

companies in the last three years. Wang

Jing, an executive Director and the Chairman of the Board.
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Mr. Zhao Shuang, aged 37, is the executive Director of the
Company. He graduated from Changchun University (R&AE) in
2002, majored in marketing and sales. Mr. Zhao was appointed
as the head of assets management of Liaoning Shihua Group in
2009 and later the general manager of Liaoning Shihua Group
responsible for assets management in January 2014. Prior to
joining Liaoning Shihua Group, Mr. Zhao was a project manager,
an assistant to general manager and a vice general manager of
Dalian Dongzhan Group Co. Ltd (KEREEEAGRE AR from
2002 to 2009. Mr. Zhao did not hold any directorship in other
listed companies in the last three years.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Ping, aged 46, is the independent non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Wang has over 16 years of
experience in corporate finance, audit and accounting. Mr.
Wang is currently acting as the non-executive director of
Chongyi Zhangyuan Tungsten Co., Ltd (stock code: 002378.
sz), the independent non-executive director of Shenzhen
Fuanna Bedding and Furnishing Co., Ltd (stock code: 002327.sz),
Sichuan Crun Co., Ltd (stock code: 002272.sz), China Hangking
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3788), China Tianrui Group
Cement Company Limited (stock code: 1252) and Jiayao
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1626). Mr. Wang worked as vice
president in EV Capital Pte Ltd from May 2007 and March 2010.
From February 2004 to March 2007, he served as chief financial
officer for China Jishan Holdings Limited (R BIF& L2 BB BR A A)),
the shares of which are listed on the main board of Singapore
Stock Exchange. From September 1999 to August 2002, he
served as a senior accountant and subsequently a manager for
audit department of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. He was
also an executive director and the chief financial officer of China
First Capital Group Limited (formerly known as China Vehicle
Components Technology Holdings Limited), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1269), from April 2014
to December 2015 and from March 2012 to December 2015
respectively.
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Mr. Wang graduated from Nanjing University (% X&) majoring
in Economics and Management in 1993 and obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Lingnan (University)
College of Sun Yat-Sen University (FLUREE) in 2004. He is a
non-practising member of Shanghai Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Wang is the chairman of the audit committee
and a member of the remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny, aged 45, is the independent non-
executive Director of the Company. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree of business administration in accounting from The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in November
1996, a master of science degree from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in December 2006 and a degree of executive
master of business administration from Northwestern University
and The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
December 2009. Mr. Cheng was admitted as an associate of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in July
1999 and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in September 2001. Mr. Cheng has years of
experience in management, financial reporting and management
accounting. Mr. Cheng worked for a subsidiary of Li & Fung
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange from January
2005 to June 2012. Mr. Cheng is currently the chief executive
officer of a private group. Mr. Cheng is the member of audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee.

Mr. Song Wenke, aged 42, is the independent non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Song was graduated from
the Dalian University of Technology with major in business
administration. He has extensive experience in corporate
operations and management. Mr. Song has acted as the deputy
director of Dalian PiMi Marine Biological Research Institute* (X
EEE K F £ M) since June 2016.

* for identification purposes only

IFRER-NAN=ZFEXRBRAE - TELHEAR
EES YR_TTMFESHURBERM(KRE)
BEEERELTEM - KA LETEME A%
BHNESE - FEEREARAEAEZEGIRER

FMEZEEXE -

BAREIRE - 4558 - RARAIBIUIFMITESE - K
R—ANRE+-AEGEARBRABRIRERS
T(EFB)BU R-TTRNFT_AREESD
NARBEZETBURN-BENF T AREHR
EREBRBEMBRABITRIMERBLEM - &
RER—NNANFELARSRASFRIRGEA
EEEERRN-_ZEZ-—FNAARGEEGHML
EEEER WEENER  WBRENEES
THEEHELR HBELCR_TTRF—AZE
—E-CHERNANERBRIMETARNEARA
BlZMBARMER - BEABRB A —RILAEEZ
TR -BEEREFZES REZBEELH

RMURBVEE - 4258 BERRRVBILIFRITES o
RAEBENRKERTARSTHEEREE - FRRd
XLENEBRTHEELEELR RELEA T —
NENAREERERKREFEDH IR E

* EHES

SF-tEEE TAEREMARAT 15



DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

EENEREEERE

Senior Management

Mr. Gary Atkinson, aged 36, joined The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. in January 2008 and was appointed as the
interim Chief Executive Officer in November 2009. Mr. Atkinson
is a licensed attorney in the State of Florida and Georgia. He
graduated from the University of Rochester with a Bachelors
Degree in Economics and was awarded a dual-degree J.D./
M.B.A. from Case Western Reserve University School of Law and
Weatherhead School of Management.

Mr. Peter Horak, aged 78, was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of Cosmo in January 2001. He is the co-
founder of Cosmo Canada and has been its CEO since 1988. Mr.
Horak has extensive knowledge and experience in distribution of
consumer electronics products in Canada. Prior to joining Cosmo
Canada in 1982, Mr. Horak worked with several top electronic
companies and served as Sanyo’s Vice President of Sales and
Marketing. He leads the sales team to open new markets and
develop new products and works closely with the administrative
group and warehouse supporting group.
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The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance. The board of directors (the “Directors”,
each a “Director”) of the Company (the “Board”) firmly believes
that the maintenance of a good, solid and sensible framework
of corporate governance will ensure the Company to run its
business in the best interests of its shareholders as a whole.

The Company adopted all the code provisions in Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) as its own code on corporate governance practices
and guidance.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions except the following:—

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted by
private act, the Starlight International Holdings Limited Company
Act, 1989 of Bermuda (the “1989 Act”). Pursuant to section 3(e)
of the 1989 Act, director holding office as executive chairman or
managing director shall not be subject to retirement by rotation
at each annual general meeting as provided in the bye-laws of
the Company (“the Bye-laws"”). As the Company is bound by the
provisions of the 1989 Act, the Bye-laws cannot be amended to
fully reflect the requirements of the Code Provision A.4.2 which
stipulates that every director, including those appointed for a
specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

To comply with the Code Provision A.4.2, all directors will be
voluntarily retired from his directorship at the subsequent annual
general meetings of the Company at least once every three
years, provided that, being eligible the retired directors may
offer themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.
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Pursuant to A.6.7 of the Code Provision, independent non-
executive director and other non-executive director should
attend general meeting and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of shareholders. Mr. Song Wenke, the independent
non-executive director was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 31 August 2016 due to their
other business commitments. In order to comply with the Code
Provision, the Company will continue to furnish all Directors with
appropriate information on all general meetings and take all
reasonable measures to arrange the schedule in such a caution
may enable all Directors to attend the general meeting as far as
possible.

Save as disclosed above, in the opinion of the Directors of the
Company, the Company has complied with all Code Provisions
as set out in the Code Provisions during the year 31 March
2017 and, where appropriate, the applicable recommended best
practices of the Code Provisions.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The Board is charged with leading the Group in a responsible
and effective manner. Each Director has to carry out his
duties in utmost good faith above and beyond any prevailing
applicable laws and regulations and act in the best interests of
the shareholders. The duties of the Board include establishing
the strategic direction of the Group, setting objectives and

monitoring the performance of the Group.

The Board consists of three executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. More than one-third of
the Board members are independent non-executive Directors
which enables the Board to make decisions and judgement in an
independent and professional manner, assist the management
in formulating the Company’s development strategies, achieving
the corporate goals and to monitor the Company’s performance.
The members of the Board as at the date of this Annual Report

are as follows:—

Executive Directors

Wang Jing (Chairman)
Wang Xing Qiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Zhao Shuang
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
Wang Ping

Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny

Song Wenke

The Board has established schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the Board for its decision and those reserved for
the management. The Board reviews this schedule on a periodic
basis to ensure that it remains appropriate to the needs of the
Company. The brief biographical details and relationship of the
Directors are described on page 13-16 of the Annual Report.

Mr. Wang Jing, the chairman of the Board and the executive
is the father of Mr. the chief
executive officer and the executive Director. Save as disclosed

Director, Wang Xing Qiao,
herein, the Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationship with each other.

Role of the Board

The Board decides on corporate strategies, approves overall
business plans and evaluates the Group’s financial performance
and management. Specific tasks that the Board delegates to the
Group’s management include the implementation of strategies
approved by the Board, the monitoring of operating budgets,
the implementation of internal controls procedures, and ensuring
of compliance with relevant statutory requirements and other
rules and regulations.

All Directors have full and timely access to the information of
the Company as well as the advice and services of the company
secretary. The Board, may, upon request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the

Company’s expenses to assist them to perform their duties.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as set out below:—

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices

on corporate governance and make recommendations;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

To comply with the A.2.1 of the Code, the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company were separated and held
by Mr. Wang Jing and Mr. Wang Xing Qiao respectively. The
Chairman is responsible for the Group’s strategic planning and
directions and to provide leadership of the Board while the
Chief Executive Officer takes the lead in the daily operations and
business development.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The three independent non-executive Directors, all of whom are
independent of the management of the Company, are highly
experienced professionals coming from diversified background.
They ensure that the Board maintains high standard of financial
and other mandatory reportings as well as providing adequate
checks and balance of safeguard the interest of shareholders
and the Company as a whole. According to the Code Provision
A4,
term,

non-executive Directors should be appointed for specific
subject to re-election. Each of the independent non-
executive Directors has entered into an appointment letter with
the Company pursuant to which each of them is appointed for
the service with the Company for a fixed term of two years
from July 2014 to 20 July 2016 and renewable automatically
for successive terms of one year each commencing from the day
next after the expiry of the current term of the appointment.
The appointment shall terminate on the earlier of (i) 20 July
2017 or (ii) the date on which the directors ceases to be director
for any reasons pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company or any
other applicable laws. The Board confirms that the Company has
received from each of the independent non-executive Directors
a confirmation of independence for the year ended 31 March
2017 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Director’s Training and Professional Development

Under the Code Provision A.6.5, directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills; and to ensure that their contributions
to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the year
ended 31 March 2017, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the Code Provision A.6.5 by reading all materials
provided by the company secretary and/or attending regular
trainings on the topics relating to corporate governance and
latest change and development of regulatory regime launched
by professional parties. The Company had received the training
records from each of the directors.
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Board Meetings and Attendance Records of Directors

Board meetings are held regularly at approximately quarterly
intervals to review the financial and operating performance
of the Group and also held on ad hoc basis as required by
the business needs. All Directors are given an opportunity to
include matters for discussion in the agenda and give opinion.
Regular Board meetings and ad hoc Board meetings are attended
by a majority of the directors in person or through other
electronic means of communication. In addition, all directors are
encouraged to attend the general meetings of the Company.
During the year ended 31 March 2017, other than resolutions
passed in writing by all the Directors, the Board held a total of
12 board meetings and 2 general meetings of the Company:—

EEREERESHFERLRE
EERTRETNEBEAFTERT R UEBHAEAE
BMyHERLEERR NTAREGRERTHEES

FoEBEFTRARRHAUMRF R EEL 4
HEER ABOEFHREXEBAMEFAATR
HEEHESReEMBRESREE o i
EESHEHBZNATRERE - HE-T—+
FZA=T—BLEFE KRE2BEZEEAB E’]/?%
HEN BEERHEBITNRAEZREHLAEAAT
RIRREKRE

Numbers of Numbers of

Board meetings General Meetings

Names of Directors EEHE attended/held attended/held
HFE BT HRE BT

EEREIAE RREAFEIARK

Wang Jing T & 12/12 0/2
Wang Xing Qiao TES 12/12 2/2
Chen Wan Jin* fRE <> 2/3 N/A 38 A
Zhao Shuang e 3 12/12 0/2
Li Jun* FE 5/7 0/1
Yang Xin Hua* IR E 2/3 N/A i A
Wang Ping TF 7/12 2/2
Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny YN 7/12 2/2
Song Wenke* R Fh 10/10 0/2
*Notes: Mr. Chen Wen Jin was resigned as executive Director on 6 July 2016. R RBEEERZE—RELAXNHBEINTES -

Mr. Li Jun was resigned as non-executive Director on 31 August 2016.

Mr. Yang Xin Hua was resigned as independent non-executive Director
on 6 July 2016.

Mr. Wong Wenke was appointed as independent non-executive
Director on 6 July 2016.
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DIRECTOR’S SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), as the code of
conduct regarding director’s securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors that they
have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 March 2017.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board and to enhance its
expertise, there are three Board committees namely, the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee
formed under the Board, with each performing different

functions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established with defined terms of
reference in alignment with the recommendations set out in “A
Guide for Effective Audit Committees”
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Code Provisions

issued by the Hong Kong

set out in the Code of the Listing Rules. During the year, the
composition of the audit committee was as below:—

Mr. Wang Ping (Chairman)
Mr. Yang Xin Hua (Note)
Mr. Cheng Tai Kwun Sunny
Mr. Song Wenke (Note)

The audit committee members meet no less than twice a year
with the senior management and the external auditors. The role
and function of the audit committee including the review of
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and other financial reporting matters, the assurance of the
completeness, accuracy and fairness of the financial statement
of the Group, monitor the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems throughout the Group and
most importantly, and to review all significant business affairs
managed by the executive directors in particular on connected
transactions.

EZETESRRS
AARERM TR TR LT RTARS
ETER S 2 METAU(TRETA) - (EAES
2P A -

ARBEMEREEFELARSH  REREEC
e ZA=t+-BUEFE-—BETRETH -

EEZRZEE
ANBEERBAERRALILNY CRESER
ETRI-—EEFREER  HHABHEER -
FHEEERRAZEE  RABTTRABE -

I EREEE - AE
’c’{%/aaﬁrﬁﬁi”&/‘ﬁﬁ E%Fﬁ& FEFTZBE

R I PTE B R AR E AR A SR RIPTE ST A
fXX - RAFER » BFZBG2EREIIMT

TEEE(ER)
¥R EE S A (KT EE)
BARHEE
RECEAE ()

EZBEENBEESFESMNEEAR RIS ZBED
EENPRMR - FEHRES2AGRBERTE
FERAKREPTRANE AT R RS I 52 E 4 B 75 5 3y
FEMERASEMBHRR I TEME  BEER
RN - BEPEARER B AR EE AR K BB B I R 2 K
Mo MREEN > DEHATESFREZ —EX
=% BRERERS

—T-LFER TE¥REEARAT 23



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

The committee also provides advices and recommendations
to the Board and oversees all matters relating to the external
auditors, and it plays an important role in monitoring and

safeguarding the independence of external auditors.

The audit committee met twice during the financial year ended
31 March 2017. Works undertaken by the audit committee
included:

o reviewing of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2017 and for the six months ended 30
September 2016;

o reviewing of the auditor’'s fees and its re-appointment;
and

o reviewing internal control and risk management system.

Note: With effect from 6 July 2016, Mr. Yang Xin Hua was resigned

as a member of audit committee and Mr. Song Wenke was

appointed as a member of audit committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established with defined terms
of reference. During the year, the remuneration committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors and the

composition was as below:—

Mr. Yang Xin Hua (Chairman) (Note)
Mr. Wang Ping

Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny

Mr. Song Wenke (Chairman) (Note)
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The primary objectives of the remuneration committee including
making recommendation to the remuneration package and
structure of the executive Directors and senior management.
In designing the remuneration policy, the Company aims to
attract and retain executive needed to operation the Group
successfully and to motivate executives to pursue appropriate
growth strategies whilst taking into account performance of
the individual.
complexity and responsibility of the individual;

The remuneration should reflect performance,
and the
remuneration package will be structured to include salary, bonus
and share options scheme to provide incentives to Directors and
senior management to improve their individual performances.

The remuneration committee members met once during the
financial year ended 31 March 2017. Works undertaken by the
remuneration committee during the year included:-

o reviewing of the remuneration policy for 2016/2017; and
o reviewing of the remuneration of the Directors.
Note: With effect from 6 July 2016, Mr. Yang Xin Hua was resigned as

the Chairman of remuneration committee and Mr. Song Wenke
was appointed as the Chairman of remuneration committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors
regarding the qualification and competency of the candidates,
also considering the reappointment of the Directors and
succession planning for Directors so as to ensure that all
nominations and appointments are fair and transparent. It takes
responsibility in assessing the appropriate mix of experience,
expertise, skills and diversity required on the Board and assessing
the extent to which the required skills are represented on the
Board and overseeing the Board succession. It is also responsible
for reviewing and reporting to the Board in relation to Board
diversity.
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Board Diversity Policy

In addition, the Company has formulated and adopted a Board
diversity policy since 2013 aiming at setting out the approach on
diversity of the Board.

The Board recognises the importance of having a diverse Board
in enhancing the Board effectiveness and corporate governance.
A diverse Board will include and make good use of differences
in the skills,
background and other qualities of directors of the Company and

industry knowledge and experience, education,

does not discriminate on the ground of race, age, gender or
religious belief. These differences will be taken into account in
determining the optimum composition of the Board and when
possible should be balanced appropriately.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the composition of the

nomination committee was as below:-

Mr. Wang Jing (Chairman)
Mr. Yang Xin Hua (Note)
Mr. Cheng Tai Kwan

Mr. Song Wenke (Note)

The nomination committee members held 2 meetings during the
financial year ended 31 March 2017. Works undertaken by the
nomination committee during the year included:-

o to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board,;

o to make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy,

o to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

o to review and make recommendations to the Board on re-

election of retiring Directors; and

. to review and make recommendations to the Board on
appointment of Directors.

Note: With effect from 6 July 2016, Mr. Yang Xin Hua was resigned as
the member of nomination committee and Mr. Song Wenke was

appointed as the member of the nomination committee.
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COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The attendance record of each committee members during the
year ended 31 March 2017 is shown as below:—

BHE_ZT—

ZEEEE
+HE=A=+—HIEFEEZEEKE
BRI

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Committee Committee Committee
Names of Directors BFEHRA Bl EE5E FMEEE REAZEEE
Wang Jing T N/A A3 A N/A A3 A 2/2
Yang Xin Hua IS 0/2 0/1 0/2
Wang Ping TF 2/2 11 N/A 3 A
Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny LN 2/2 11 2/2
Song Wenke KRR 1/1 N/A 35 N/A i A

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 March 2017, Mr. Lam Wai Kei is the
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Lam Wai Kei has duly
complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of services provided by ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited for the Group for the year ended 31 March
2017 are analysed as follows:

Audit Service HK$1,500,000

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR PREPARING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management provides the explanation and information to
the Board to facilitate an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board for approval.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group. Meanwhile, the Directors are responsible
for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates
made are prudent and reasonable. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2017, the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the applicable laws were complied with.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon
the Group's ability to continue as going concern. The Board has
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of external auditor of the Company
are disclosed in “Independent Auditor’'s Report”.

INTERNAL CONTROL & RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective internal control system of the Group. The system
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
safeguard its assets against unauthorized use of disposition,
ensures the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensures compliances with relevant laws and
regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss,
and to manage the risks of failure in the Group’s operational
systems and in the achievement of the Group’s objectives.
During the year, the Company has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of system of internal control including risk
management system and also the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function and also made recommendations to
follow up. The Company considered the internal control and risk
management systems effective and adequate.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDER'S
AND INVESTOR RELATION

The Board recognizes the importance of good communication
with the shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is
disseminated to the shareholders in a timely manner through a
number of formation channels, which include interim and annual

reports, announcements and circulars of the Company.

The general meetings of the Company are valuable forum for
the Board to communicate directly with the shareholders. The
shareholders are encouraged to attend the general meetings of
the Company.

An annual general meeting of the Company was held on 31
August 2016 (the “2016 AGM”) and a special general meeting
of the Company was held on 31 August 2016 (the “2016
SGM").
circular dated 28 July 2016 was despatched to the shareholders

A notice convening the 2016 AGM contained in the

together with 2016 Annual Report and the notice convening the
2016 SGM contained in the circular dated 8 August 2016 was
despatched to the shareholders on 8 August 2016. The Board
of Directors attended the 2016 AGM and 2016 SGM to answer
questions from the shareholders.

The Chairman of the meeting of 2016 AGM and 2016 SGM
explained detailed procedures for conduction of a poll. All the
resolutions proposed at the 2016 AGM and 2016 SGM were
passed separately by the Shareholders by way of poll. The
results of the poll were published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company after the meeting.

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will
be held on 8 September 2017 (the “2017 AGM"). A notice
convening 2017 AGM will be published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company and despatched together
with the 2017 Annual Report to the shareholders as soon as
practicable in accordance with the Bye-laws and the Code

Provision.

The Company is committed to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains an open dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s development.
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The Company has maintained a company website (www.00485.hk)
for the purpose of updating the Company’'s business
developments and operations, financial information and news.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the company secretary whose

contact details are as follows:—

Address: Rooms 05-15, 13A/F., South Tower, World
Finance Centre, Harbour City, 17 Canton Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax: +852 2208 6008

Email: jlam@00485.hk

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders are entitled to requisition a special general meeting
and put forward proposals at general meeting. Please refer to
the procedures as follows:

(A) Procedures for requisitioning a special general

meeting

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary signed and deposited
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company,
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, require the Directors
to call a special general meeting for the transaction of

business specified in the requisition.
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(B) Procedures for putting forward proposals at general

meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
to vote at general meetings of the Company or not less
than 100 Shareholders may, at their expense, provide a
written request to the attention of the Company Secretary
signed and deposited in accordance with the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

Besides, the updated Memorandum of Association and Bye-
laws of the Company has been posted on the website of the
Company at www.00485.hk and the designated website of the
Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk.

There were no material changes to the Memorandum of
Association and Bye-laws of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2017.

CONCLUSION

The Company strongly believes that the quality and standard of
corporate governance reflects the quality of the management
and the operations of the Group’s businesses. Good corporate
governance can safeguard the proper use of funds and effective
allocation of resources and to protect shareholders’ interests.
The management wholeheartedly advocated of the good practice
in corporate governance and will try our best to maintain,
strengthen and improve the standard and quality of the Group’s
corporate governance.
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China Sinostar Group Company Limited and its subsidiaries
are pleased to present its Environment, Social and Governance
Report (the “ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 March 2017.
The ESG Report summarises the policies and achievement
made by the Group in corporate social responsibility and
sustainable development. The Group believes that the substantial
development in environment and society is one of the core
elements which leads to the success of business and will
ultimately benefit all. During the year ended 31 March 2017,
the Group did not observe any material non-compliance on
the applicable and relevant social and environmental laws and
regulations that has a significant impact on the Group.

REPORTING SCOPE

This report covers the performance of the Group’s businesses
including the trading business in the USA, Canada and the PRC,
properties investment business in the PRC and the renewable
energy business in the PRC for the financial year of 2017.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules set out by the Stock Exchange.

ENVIRONMENT

Emission and Resources

Sustainable development has been adopted as an objective of
the Group. The Group is committed to minimize the greenhouse
gas and emissions waste which are derived from the daily
operations of the Group so as to minimize the impact on the
environment. Policies were formulated and adopted which aim
at complying with the applicable requirements of the laws and
regulations on emission and use of resources. Based on the
review during the reporting period, types of greenhouse gas
emission source and waste derived from the daily operations of
the Group were mainly paper and electricity. To reduce paper
consumption, the Group encourages its employees to reduce the
usage of photocopies, print double-sided for internal documents
and external documents, where appropriate, and use electronic
copies. Recycle boxes and bins were placed at offices to collect
non-reusable paper and waste. The Group also encourages its
employees to segregate non-recyclable and recyclable waste and
reuse and recycle the office supplies, such as reusing the binders,
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file folders and papers. To reduce electricity consumption, the
air-conditioners installed at offices were maintained at room
temperature 25.5°C. The Group also encourages and reminds
the employees to switch off the lights and air-conditioning when
In addition, the
Group also sets up video-conference and teleconference facilities

not in use to lower the electricity consumption.

at offices to minimise unnecessary business travels which may

subsequently reduce greenhouse gas emissions from air travels.

SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group believes that employees are the most important
asset of the Group. The Group complied with all relevant
laws, regulations and rules related to compensation, dismissal,
recruitment and promotion to protect the rights and benefits
of the employees. Moreover, the Group offers remuneration
packages at a competitive level and reviews them on a regular
basis in order to recruit and retain the employees. To recognise
the contributions of the employees, the Company offers
discretionary bonus to the employees and senior management by
reference to the Group’s performance as well as the individual
performance. The Group also promotes equal opportunity for
employees towards gender, race, religion, age, disability, sexual
orientation, nationality, political opinion, or social or ethnic
origin. No employee is allowed to be subject to any form of
discrimination on recruitment, training development and career

development.

Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working
environment for all employees and believes that it can enhance
their sense of belonging and productivity. The Group requires all
departments in different districts to strictly follow relevant laws
and regulations in relation to safe working environment and
protection for occupational hazards. Workplaces are properly
designed with first aid facilities and emergency exists are
installed.
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Development and Training

The Group conceives that training plays an important role for
personal development, work efficiency and productivity. The
Group encourages its employees to participate in different
training programmes to improve knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. During the reporting period, staff,
senior management and directors engaged in different training
programmes provided by the government, non-profit statutory
bodies and professional education centers.

Labour Standards

The Group complies with the relevant labour laws, regulations
and rules in its operating countries, including Hong Kong, the
PRC, Canada and the USA. In order to prevent child and forced
labour, the Group conducts background checks, such as age,
certificate, previous job reference letter so as to ensure the
employees meet the minimum age standard and applicable laws
in those designated countries.

Supply Chain Management

To maintain the quantity as well as the quality of our products,
the Group emphasises on the selection of suppliers and maintains
an approved list of the suppliers in which the admission is
subject to the assessment of their background, quality and
quantity of the products, prices and response to the suggestions
and customers’ feedback. Moreover, the management team
reviews and updates the list from time to time. Regular meetings
are arranged between suppliers and management team for the
improvement of products and review on customers’ feedback.

Product Responsibility

The Group strictly followed the applicable and relevant laws
and regulations related to products standards, quality control
and labeling. In addition, it also requires its suppliers to
comply with the same standard as well as other applicable laws
and regulations in respect of product safety, quality control,
measurement and labeling. Regarding the customer data
protection and privacy, the Group complies with applicable laws
and regulations, such as the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance in
Hong Kong. Relevant rules and guidelines are also set out in the
employment contracts so as to force every employee to follow.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BiR - HERERRE

Anti-corruption

Integrity, ethics, fairness and honesty are the core values of the
Group. The Group formulated policies against bribery, fraud
and money laundering in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations, such as the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of the
Laws of Hong Kong. For the year ended 31 March 2017, there
was no concluded legal case regarding corrupt practices brought
against the Group or its employees during the reporting period.

Community Investment

The Group encourages its employees to dedicate their time to
support the local community by participating in charity activities
and fund raising events and making donations to non-profit
organization.

In addition, the Group also makes donations and contribute
goods to local charities, churches and to programs sponsored by
some of our major customers.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Its principal subsidiaries are engaged in the design and sale of
a wide range of electronic products, sales and installation of
elevators, operation and management of hydroelectric power
stations, properties investment and securities trading during the

year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 55-56. The directors of
the Company have determined that no dividends will be paid in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil).

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of principal properties held for development and for
investment purposes are set out on page 123 of the annual
report.

SHARE ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 March 2017
are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

There is no reserve available for distribution to shareholders as
at 31 March 2017.
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EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

(a)

(b)

Convertible bonds

On 30 July 2014, the Company issued 3% coupon
Convertible Bonds at principal amount of HK$75,000,000
maturing on 30 July 2017 to the immediate holding
company of the Company. The Convertible Bonds are
convertible, at the option of the bond holder, into
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.23 (after adjustment for Capital
Reorganisation and details of which are set out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements) per share,
subject to anti-dilutive adjustments, at any time on or
after 30 July 2014 up to and including the maturity date.
None of the Convertible Bonds has been converted into
ordinary shares of the Company during both years.

Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased
and cancelled, the outstanding Convertible Bonds will
be redeemed by the Company at 100% of its principal
amount on the maturity date. The reason for issuance of
the Convertible Bonds is to explore alternative funding

arrangements to fund the working capital needs.

Share option scheme

Details of the Share Option Scheme is set out in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements and the section
headed “Share options” contained in the Directors’
Report. No shares were issued pursuant to the Share

Option Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

bye-laws and there was no restriction against such rights under

the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the

group for the last five financial years is set out on page 160 of

this annual report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2017, neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company'’s listed securities.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which
was approved and adopted at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 15 January 2008 for a period of 10
years. With reference to the composite offer and response
document dated 30 June 2014 jointly issued by Achieve Prosper
Capital Limited and Starlight International Holdings Limited
(currently named as
(the

unconditional cash offers by Kingston Securities Limited, on

“China Sinostar Group Company Limited”)
“Composite Document”) in respect of the mandatory

behalf of the Achieve Prosper Capital Limited, to acquire all the
issued shares (other than those already owned and agreed to
be acquired by the Achieve Prosper Capital Limited and parties
acting in concert with it), and to cancel all outstanding shares
options of the Company. From 21 July 2014 onward, being
the latest time and date for acceptance of the Listco Offers (as
defined in the Composite Document), no shares options were
granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the

Scheme.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2017 and up to the date of the directors’ report were:—

Executive Directors

Wang Jing (Chairman)

Wang Xing Qiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Chen Wan Jin (Note)

Zhao Shuang

Non-Executive Director
Li Jun (Note)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Yang Xin Hua (Note)

Wang Ping

Cheng Tai Kwan Sunny

Song Wenke (Note)
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Note: With effect from 6 July 2016, Mr. Chen Wan Jin resigned as the

Executive Director, Mr. Yang Xin Hua resigned as the Independent
Non-Executive Director and Mr. Song Wenke was appointed as
the Independent Non-Executive Director. With effect from 31
August 2016, Mr. Li Jun retired as the Non-Executive Director.

Pursuant to the code provision A.4.2 of the Code, all directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at the subsequent annual
general meetings of the Company at least once every three
years, provided that, being eligible for re-election, they may
offer themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY'’S BUSINESS

The Company or its subsidiaries have entered into a number of
transactions with entities in which the former executive Directors
have substantial shareholding. Details of those transactions are
set out in the section headed “Connected Transaction” in this
annual report.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance, to which
the Company, any of its controlling entities or its subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director had a material interest,
directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year.

BZZ-—REFLAREE RESELEEHFHIHN
TEE HBHERLECHIBUIFNATEENR
XHEEEEREBUFRNTERT - BT~ K
FNR=+—R  FEELEREFNPTES -

RIBTRIRNEA L2 2BEFAELE=F
RARRBEERBITORRBFE NG LRFRE - 1
REGERAKBRREBFE RS LERBE -

BEEZRBEN
BREERREFAS LERETr EFFTRA
ARET I — 4 TR CRTE R 90 TR Lt
ZIRIBAHK -

t

X

EERHAEXALATAEBBEENS
% RHEREHNTHNERESR

A3
BRIV —RIIRG - REXHHBHININAF
EIRERS |ZH5 -

BREXRBEEIN  REARFRBEARF - HE
AEHEENENBARAENT EEFEERE
BERETHRAEARDEZEH -

SE-LFER PEFLEEMARAT 39



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERBEE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares and
share options of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which are required (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to the Model Code in the Listing Rules to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(i) Long Position in the Shares

EERFETBRAEREAQAHAR
DB YR 45 B 1 S E A H it AE
BEZE KRN  HERORESZ
R KA

“E—HF-A=T—HB ARRBEFHIE
BABRARAREBBER(ERERES LY
FEXVED) Z B iy K BB A HE P B (a) IR 1B E 55
RBERAIEXVBETIRSD B MEAMEARR
ARBZA(BRREES RPEERIZIGXFE
FWESTEZEDIAR)  R(b)REFEH M
B RHI 352 1R BRC SR AN A AR IR R 1R B T 2k
B HORBELEHRNZFETRIAME AR
BIME R Tz s SR BT

(1 REROZRA

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Long Position/ Number of capital in the
Name of Directors Short Position Capacity Shares held Company
RARAT D BT
EEnA RE /%7 g1 BFREE RAHHOBESHL
Executive Director
BITES
Wang Jing Long Position Interest of controlled 2,171,827,290 59.49%
corporation (Note)
TR RAE REEHER 2 (B &)
Wang Xing Qiao Long Position Beneficial Owner 3,275,000 0.09%
TES ®E BB A
Note: These 2,171,827,290 shares are held by Achieve Prosper M5 52 %2,171,827,290R R R E R E A

Capital Limited and wholly and beneficially owned by
Hong Kong Shihua Holdings Limited, which is in turn
wholly and beneficially owned by Liaoning Shihua (Group)
Property Development Limited EZ & (£ )R i EH
AR AT, Mr. Wang Jing is the sole director of and
the beneficial owner of 82.8% of the equity interest in
Liaoning Shihua (Group) Property Development Limited.
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wang Jing is deemed to be
interested in these 2,171,827,290 shares.
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(ii) Directors’ interests in the shares of associated (ii) EENEBLIEZRA 2 ER
corporations
Number of
ordinary  Approximate
shares in percentage
Achieve of issued
Prosper share capital
Name of associated Name of Long/Short Capital in Achieve
corporation Director Capacity position Limited Prosper
ARRNAZ REXKDBHITR
TR EE 2B E5nA g4 RA/ KR ZRRHAE TN BEDL
Achieve Prosper Wang Jing Interest of Long position 1,000,000 100%
Capital Limited controlled (Note)
corporation
ERERBERAA T REEHEE KA (Bt #E)

ZKEuh

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee Shares
in subsidiaries held by Directors in trust for the Company or its
subsidiaries, as at the date of this annual report, none of the
Company’s Directors, chief executive nor their associates had any
interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SFO) as notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he
is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers accounted for 32% and
95% respectively of the Group’s total turnover for the year.
The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for 26% and 66%
respectively of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2017, the following persons, other than
the interest disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
and chief executives’ interests and/or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any specified undertaking of the Company or any other
associated corporation”, had interest 5% or more in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company have notified to the
Company and have been recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions required to

be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:-
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Aggregate
Number of percentage of
shares and issued share
underlying capital as at
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest shares 31 March 2017
EHRE-ZE—LF
% 17 & A6 B8 =A=+—8
BREEREHE ERMEE BROHE SBITRANBES L
Achieve Prosper Capital Limited Beneficial owner 2,171,827,290 59.49%
FERERNFRAT BEmEA A
Hong Kong Shihua Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 2,171,827,290 59.49%
ERBEERBRERA MEEREE 2 s
Liaoning Shihua (Group) Property Interest of controlled corporation 2,171,827,290 59.49%
Development Limited
EEEE(KE)FHEREBRA MEEGEE 2 #a
Hu Bao Qin Spouse Interest 2,171,827,290 59.49%
HEE il B s
Lushan Investment Holding Limited Custodian corporation/Approved 2,917,914,246 79.93%

lending agent

AEARE BEBHREA

As at 31 March 2017, Achieve Prosper Capital Limited is wholly RZ==
and beneficially owned by Hong Kong Shihua Holdings Limited,
which is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Liaoning
Shihua (Group) Property Development Limited FHEE#H (£H)
EiERMIZEAR AR, Mr. Wang ling is the sole director and the
beneficial owner of 82.8% of the equity interest in Liaoning
Shihua (Group) Property Development Limited
EiERIZEFR AR, By virtue of the SFO, Hong Kong Shihua
Holdings Limited, Liaoning Shihua (Group) Property Development
E)E#ERZEABRQF, Mr. Wang Jing

A En

Limited EEEE (5%

BEEEE(KE)

o

BX

and Ms. Hu Bao Qin were deemed to be interest in the said
2,171,827,290 Shares held by Achieve Prosper Capital Limited.
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On 30 December 2015, Achieve Prosper Capital Limited
transferred the 326,086,956 underlying Shares which are
the conversion Shares and are issuable upon the exercise of
the Convertible Bonds to Lushan Investment Holding Limited.
On 14 March 2016, Achieve Prosper Capital Limited entered
into a share charge with Lushan Investment Holding Limited,
pursuant to which Achieve Prosper Capital Limited has pledged
2,171,827,290 Shares in favour of Lushan Investment Holding
Limited. In addition, further 420,000,000 Shares held by Achieve
Prosper Capital Limited was transferred to Lushan Investment
Holding Limited pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement
entered by the Achieve Prosper Capital Limited and Lushan
Investment Holding Limited (please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated on 16 March 2016 for further details). Save
as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO recorded
no other interests, short positions or long positions in shares of
the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the period from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2017, the Group
had the following non-exempted continuing connected transaction
within the meaning of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

Framework Purchase Agreement

On 30 June 2014, SIH Limited (“Privateco”) and Treasure
Green Holdings Limited (a subsidiary of the Company) entered
into a framework purchase agreement (“the Framework
Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which the Privateco and its
subsidiaries (“Privateco Group”) would sell and the Company
and the remaining subsidiaries upon completion of the Group
Restructuring and the distribution in specie and the creditors’
scheme becoming effective (“Remaining Group”) would purchase
certain electronic products in accordance with the terms of the
Framework Purchase Agreement. The relevant members of the
Remaining Group and the Privateco Group would from time
to time enter into individual agreements in respect of the sale
and purchase of the relevant electronic products. The initial
term of the Framework Purchase Agreement shall commence
from the date of completion of the distribution in specie (i.e.
30 June 2014) up to and including 31 March 2015. For further
information, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 30 June 2014 and the circular of the Company dated 24
May 2014.
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Since the expiration of the term of the Framework Purchase
Agreement on 1 April 2015, sale and purchase of electronic
products have been continuing among the Privateco Group and
the Remaining Group on the same terms of the Framework
Purchase Agreement. The Privateco Group and the Remaining
Group has entered into another framework purchase agreement
(the "2nd Framework Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Privateco Group will sell and the Remaining Group will
purchase certain electronic products from time to time for a
term commencing from 21 July 2015 and ending on 31 March
2018 on 16 September 2015. According to the 2nd Framework
Purchase Agreement, the annual caps in respect of the sale of
electronic products by the Privateco Group to the Remaining
Group shall not exceed (i) HK$56 million during the period from
21 July 2015 to 31 March 2016; (ii) HK$80 million during the
period from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017; and (iii) HK$95
million during the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018.

The transactions contemplated under the 2nd Framework
Purchase Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules by virtue of the Privateco Group being an associate of the
Resigned Directors and thus a connected person of the Company
at the subsidiary level as at the date of the 2nd Framework
Purchase Agreement. Given (1) the Board has approved
transactions contemplated under the 2nd Framework Purchase
Agreement; and (2) the Directors (including all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors) confirmed that the terms of the 2nd
Framework Purchase Agreement are fair and reasonable, and
that the 2nd Framework Purchase Agreement are on normal
commercial terms and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole, the 2nd Framework Purchase
Agreement is subject to the announcement requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but is exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing
Rules.
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On 9 March 2016, the Privateco and Remaining Group entered
into a supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”)
to amend the terms of the 2nd Framework Purchase Agreement.
As such, apart from the annual cap of the transactions
contemplated under the 2nd Framework Purchase Agreement for
the period from 21 July 2015 to 31 March 2016 was increased
from HK$56 million to HK$57 million, other terms of the 2nd

Framework Purchase Agreement remain unchanged.

The annual cap and the actual transactions amount of the
transactions contemplated under the 2nd Purchase Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out in the
table below.

RZZ-RE=ZANA  RARREEEHKTEE
I — I (T MRl - e J%_T‘@%
BERGZE IR - Bt - E_MDBEERGHY

7

TR SN -E—FE LAt —BE-T—
ANEZA=+—BILHR Y FE FRES6E BT
BESTESBEL - RAMERTE -

FMBEERBRATHRETZIIABE"T

—+tF=ZA=+—HLFEZFELIRERERRS
RN TR -
Annual Cap

(For the period
from 1 April 2016
to 31 March 2017)

FE LR
(ZZB—R"EWNB—BE
Amount —E—tF=H=+—~H
okt LEHIR)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Purchase of electronic products from SIH ~ BESIH Limited R B R 7
Limited and its subsidiaries (Note) BEMNE FERME) 36,657 80,000

Note: Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip is a director of SIH Limited, who is also
a director of a subsidiary of the Company.
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The amount of above transactions did not exceed the
corresponding annual cap for the period from 1 April 2016 to
31 March 2017 as announced by the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has engaged ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (the “Auditor”),
the auditor of the Company, to review the Group’s continuing
connected transactions entered into by the Company and its
subsidiaries for the period from 1 April 2016 to 31 March
2017 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The Auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions during the period from 1 April 2016 to 31 March
2017 disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditors’ letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange. The
conclusion contained in such letter is set out below.

a) nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Company’s
Board;

b) for transactions involving the provision of goods and
services by the Group, nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the transactions
were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group;

ERRZELRBEARAARAAGERE_T—RF
MA—HE-_Z—+F=A=+—HERZEEF
ELER-

RIEETRAEI14A 5605 - RARCEFTER
EGAMEBMARIB( ] BEARRZ
ZBED)  URBBESTMASHRMANBEEXK
REZIBEREI0005% BERXBRBEVBER
M2 ZERR I RSEEBFHALTA00BARE
B ETRAFRFSEREXZNZBM RG] - 8
AEENFERERS(BAARERENREARR
TE-RFEUA-BE_Z—tF=A=+—H0H
RIS ) ETTER -

D RIE LTRAEI4ASHKEHERER
Rt BRHAEHEUAEER ELXARER-F
—RNFOMA-BEZE_ZE—+F=A=+—HHEHHZ
FEMERX S 2 BRARER - NATC XA K
HRINXZBFT - B KFMEZRIDT

a) BEFRENEESBURSHEMRENE
BEZX U RERRREEBULME

b) A RAEERBEYREREZRZME
BMEXREMNEEERREFAEZRS &
FRBERGE  TARNKEEEERK
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9 nothing has come to their attention that causes them
to believe that the transactions were not entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant

agreement governing such transaction; and

d) with respect to the aggregate amount of the continuing
connected transaction set out above, nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that
the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual cap disclosed in
previous announcement dated 17 September 2015 made
by the Company in respect of the disclosed continuing

connected transaction.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
transactions and the aforesaid Auditor’s letter and confirmed
that the continuing connected transactions have been entered

into:

a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
b) on normal commercial terms; and

Q) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing

such transaction on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders as a whole.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company, and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float not less than
25% of Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2017.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this
Directors’ Report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision being in force for the benefit of any of the directors of
the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise) or
an associated company (if made by the Company).
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ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received the annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered all independent non-executive Directors to
be independent.

CHANGE OF AUDITOR

With reference to the announcement of the Company dated 1
June 2017, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as the auditor of
the Group with effect from 1 June 2017 and ZHONGHUI ANDA
CPA LIMITED was appointed as the Group’s auditor to fill the
casual vacancy following the resignation of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu with effect from 1 June 2017.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited as the
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jing
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
30 June 2017
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;0

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA SINOSTAR GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Sinostar Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 55 to 159, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

(i)

Investment properties

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group measured its investment properties at fair
value with the changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss. This fair value measurement
is significant to our audit because the balance of
investment properties of HK$206,477,000 as at 31
March 2017 and the fair value loss of HK$28,315,000
for the year then ended are material to the consolidated
financial statements. In addition, the Group’s fair value
measurement involves application of judgement and is
based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the competence, independence and
integrity of the external valuer engaged by client;

- Obtaining the external valuation reports and
meeting with the external valuer to discuss and
challenge the valuation process, methodologies
used and market evidence to support significant
judgments and assumptions applied in the
valuation model;

- Checking key assumptions and input data in the
valuation model to supporting evidence;

- Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation
model; and
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONT’D)

(i)

(i)

52

Investment properties (CONT'D)

- Assessing the disclosure of the fair value
measurement in the consolidated financial
statements.

We consider that the Group’s fair value measurement of
the investment properties is supported by the available
evidence.

Trade debtors

Refer to Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group tested the amount of trade debtors for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to
our audit because the balance of trade debtors of
HK$211,186,000 as at 31 March 2017 is material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group's

impairment test involves application of judgement and is
based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting
credit limits and credit periods to customers;

- Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction
history with the customers;

- Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;
- Assessing ageing of the debts;
- Assessing creditworthiness of the customers;

- Checking subsequent settlements from the
customers;

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for trade
debtors is supported by the available evidence.

China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2017
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other
information is expected to be made available to us after the date
of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's
website at: http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-
regulations/standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/. This description
forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wan Ho Yuen
Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P04309

Hong Kong, 30 June 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GmEREREMEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

2017 2016
—E—4+F —E—REF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i FHBxT FET
REVENUE A 8 632,015 425,523
Cost of sales $HE KA (469,223) (322,478)
Gross profit EF 162,792 103,045
Other income E At g A 9 91 671
Distribution costs Pal I (43,260) (42,418)
Administrative expenses THEA (62,703) (64,141)
Other gain and loss H s kAR 10 6,247 (3,466)
Decrease in fair value of BEWMHEZ
investment properties NFER D 17 (28,315) (5,863)
Finance costs B & B A 11 (12,248) (12,781)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—ENB ATz - 10,211
Impairment loss on goodwill EHERERE (34,027) -
Impairment loss on property, Y% - BB MR E
plant and equipment WIEEE (2,935) -
Impairment loss on investment in & E N F
an associate REEE (3,751) -
Share of profits of an associate JE (B N B s A 662 247
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION R A& 1R (17,447) (14,495)
Taxation i 14 (21,559) (1,504)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEEE 12 (39,006) (15,999)
Other comprehensive expense FEHMEEAX -
for the year, net of tax: HBRBIIE
Items that may be reclassified to HEQAEHRs8E
profit or loss: BE2EE
Exchange difference arising on BEBIINEREEZ
translation of foreign operations PN =58 (25,808) (14,106)
Release of translation reserve HENBRARRKHBRE
upon disposal of a subsidiary Gk pkedE - 5,247
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE FEHM2EMAX
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX MERFE (25,808) (8,859)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE FE2H
FOR THE YEAR X R (64,814) (24,858)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meaRmkAEMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HILFE

2017 2016
—ZT—+F —FRF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
5 FET FHET
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR THALTELGEE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: AL (EE)
Owners of the Company KRalER A (46,055) (22,243)
Non-controlling interests JEFE AR REZS 7,049 6,244
(39,006) (15,999)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR THALTEEEEZARKRA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: (FAR)# %8 .
Owners of the Company EIN/NEIEZ = DN (71,948) (31,132)
Non-controlling interests FEFR R 7,134 6,274
(64,814) (24,858)
LOSS PER SHARE SRER 16 HK$ cents Bl HKS$ cents &l
— Basic and diluted —EARNE#E (1.26) (1.43)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R E MRS R

At 31 March 2017
R-—FE—+F=H=1—H

2017 2016
—T—tF —FRF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i FHBxT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investment properties wEME 17 206,477 208,631
Property, plant and equipment ME - MR KRERE 18 57,148 39,140
Goodwill (SRS 19 8,512 17,665
Interest in an associate B N AR 21 3,703 6,792
Deferred tax assets R TEE E 22 7,295 18,852
Long-term prepayments REATERT R 24 455 309
Prepaid land lease payments TERT T H A E IR 25 44,374 -
Deposit paid for investments EffzikERS - 106,714
Deposit paid for investment properties B2 &EMEiRS - 12,902
327,964 411,005
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories T8 23 62,807 54,299
Debtors, deposits and other receivables EWERIE - & K& E b fE W ERIE 24 243,395 114,559
Investments held for trading BIEEEZRE 26 380 451
Amounts due from related companies &Y RE3E N A1 FIE 28 10,841 -
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRRE S 29 34,442 249,130
351,865 418,439
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Creditors and accrued charges FEERIBENETER 30 111,991 73,434
Amount due to immediate EREEER AT
holding company ExQE] 27 33,344 175,550
Amounts due to related companies FETREE A R FIA 31 36,100 -
Amount due to a director EREERER 27 172 172
Current tax liabilities mENMIBEE 11,684 -
Borrowings BE 32 20,477 11,990
Convertible bonds AR E S 33 72,174 -
285,942 261,146
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 65,923 157,293
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREERRDARS
LIABILITIES 393,887 568,298
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR RE

At 31 March 2017
R=ZF—+tF=A=1+—H

2017 2016
—ZT—+F —FRF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
5 FExT FAT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Long-term creditors RHIFERERIA 30 = 15,011
Borrowings BE 32 79,023 107,913
Convertible bonds AR E A 33 - 64,399
Deferred tax liabilities FRIER TG & 22 - 2,098
79,023 189,421
NET ASSETS EEFE 314,864 378,877
CAPITAL AND RESERVES IR R
Share capital &% 7 34 36,507 36,507
Reserves ] 248,837 320,629
Equity attributable to owners RAREEAELES
of the Company 285,344 357,136
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R = 29,520 21,741
TOTAL EQUITY MRS 314,864 378,877

The consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 159 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
30 June 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

I8
Wang Jing
CHAIRMAN

*E
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERRSBR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LSNG PN
Convertible  Capital Non-
Share Share  Capital Translation bonds redemption Contributed  Accumulated controlling
capital  premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  surplus*  losses*  Subtotal interests Total
ik EX

k= ROEE RARE EiRE G5 RERE S0BR  ZHER Nt FRRER &3t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TERL  TEm  TERT TER  TEm  TER  TER  TEnL  TEL  TERL  TER

At 1 April 2015 RZE-1f
BA-A 243381 24,000 144 12912 61365 292448 23909 (576,115 82,044 15256 97,300

Exchange difference  HEBH£H

arising on translation  E£ZEREE

of foreign operations - - - (14,136) - - - - (14136) 30 (14,106)
Release of translation ~ HEHEL A

reserve upon disposal  HERE A

of a subsidiary - - - 5,247 - - - - 5,247 - 5,247
Loss/(profit) for the year £ &%,/ (%H) - - - - - - - 3) (2243 6244 (15,999)
Total comprehensive ~ EE2E(BX)/

(expense)fincome WAEE

for the year - - - (8,889) - - - (22,283) (31,132 6,274 (24,858)
Placing of shares RERD 48676 11,682 - - - - - - 60358 - 60358
Transaction costs RERREL

incurred in connection  ZXFHKA

with placing of shares - (759) - - - - - - (759) - (759)
Deemed partial disposal B EHENE

of a subsidiary NESRER - - 2 - - - - - 2 27) -

Capital contribution WEARFEAR

from non-controlling ~ RETE

shareholders of

a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 108 108
Reduction of share BRAEAE 2 RE

capital upon capital HlE

reorganisation (284,756) - - - - 284,75 - - - - -
Issue of shares upon DREERET

open offer ) 29,206 221,963 - - - - - - 251,169 - 251,169
Transaction costs AREEELZ

incurred in connection  FHFRA

with open offer - (4.571) - - - - - - (4.571) - (4,571)

Recognition of equity-  BAMNEHEE
settled share-based DR BERE

payments sfzHE - - - - - - - - - 130 130
At 31 March 2016 RIE-1RE
ZE=1-A 36,507 252,315 m 403 61365 577,00 23909  (598358) 357,136 21,741 378877
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERSREEBXR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAFEEAEL
Convertible  Capital Non-
Share Share  Capital Translation bonds redemption Contributed  Accumulated controlling
capital  premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  surplus* losses* ~ Subtotal interests Total
ik Ex
Bx RiOEE* BAREG EXRE B5REG BERE BARN ZHEE Nt FERER &3t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AR Thn Tt T ThR T FiEn FiEn ThR T T
At 1 April 2016 RoE-AE
TmA-A 36,507 252,315 [ 4,023 61,365 577,204 23909 (598,358) 357,136 2,141 378,877
Exchange difference  #EB)EHES
arising on translation  ZEREE
of foreign operations - - - (25,893) - - - - (25893) 85 (25,808)
Loss/(profit) for the year & &,/ (%H) - - - - - - - (46,055 (46,055 7,049 (39,006)
Total comprehensive  £E2E(BX)/
(expense)fincome WAEE
for the year - - - (25,893) - - - (46,055)  (71,948) 7,134 (64,814)
Deemed partial disposal 1B BHENE
of a subsidiary NABhER - - 156 - - - - - 156 (156) -
Capital contribution B Ra AR
from non-controlling ~ RETE
shareholders of
a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 589 589
Recognition of equity- DNERLEE
settled share-based R A
payments THzHE - - - - - - - - - M M2
At 31 March 2017 RIB-tE
ZA=1-H 36,507 252,315 327 (21,870) 61,365 577,204 23909 (644,413) 285,344 29520 314,864

*

consolidated statement of financial position.

60  China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2017

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in the

*

ZERBREBREAVBRRNR ZGEFHE -



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

2017 2016
—E—+F ZT—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Loss before taxation BRI RIEE (17,447) (14,495)
Adjustments for: FEE
Finance costs Bh & B AN 12,248 12,781
Decrease in fair value of REMEZ R TFERD
investment properties 28,315 5,863
Depreciation of property, M BERERETE
plant and equipment 6,097 1,340
Amortisation of prepaid land T8 < £ th A & 5K TE B 8
lease payments 782 -
Allowance for doubtful debts RS 712 683
Allowance for obsolete and PRERBIHTFE ZEE
slow-moving inventories 873 159
Share-based payments LA R AR 7 2B 2 5 3R 212 130
Decrease in fair value of investments BIEEEREQFERD
held for trading 71 2
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMBARELS Z W - (10,211)
Gain on disposal of investment HEREMEEE 2 W
properties (9,259) -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BMELRREBZEE
plant and equipment 370 -
Share of profits of an associate JE (Bt = X R R (662) (247)
Interest income FlEHA (18) (54)
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 34,027 -
Impairment loss on investment in R E R EIREREEE
an associate 3,751 -
Impairment loss on property, W - BERRERERE
plant and equipment 2,935 -
Dividend income from investments HIEEERE ZREWA
held for trading (9) (8)
Operating cash flows before movements FMELE LB ELEL R
in working capital 62,998 (4,057)
Change in inventories FEE (9,381) 20,665
Change in debtors, deposits and JEUWERIE - e REMEWARE
other receivables (211,228) 9,547
Change in creditors and accrued charges [ERNERIBNEFTERE D) 16,398 (42,766)
Cash used in operations BEACRAS (141,213) (16,611)
Dividend income from investments BEEBRE 2R BT
held for trading 9 8
Taxation in other jurisdictions paid HiREE O MFE (416) -
Net cash used in operating activities K& FEHFAZEESFHE (141,620) (16,603)

SE—LEER TEAZEEMERAT 61



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
RERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—+tF=A=1T—HIFE

2017 2016
—E 5 T —RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHEEZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Net cash infow from disposal of HEMRBRAREAZRSRA T
a subsidiary - 5,938
Dividend received from an associate SR A=PNEII Qi il 5N - 300
Interest received =R 18 54
Deposit paid for investments BEfREES - (106,714)
Refund of deposit paid for investments  REDNERELRS 106,714 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary I iE— Rk B A A (14,751) (15,398)
Settlement of consideration payable BEEFERENB LR 2 EANRE
for acquisition of subsidiaries in
previous year (19,613) -
Deposit paid for investment properties ENEEMEZRE - (12,902)
Purchase of investment properties EEREME (30,260) (11,334)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREMEMBHKIE
investment properties 23,611 -
Settlement of consideration receivable EE FFERENBRG 2 BIRE
from disposal of a subsidiary
in previous year 81,534 -
Purchase of prepaid land lease payments @%ﬁﬁﬁif@fﬁi’?m (45,156) -
Advance to immediate holding company  FE{I B KIE (237,872) (6,769)
Advance to related companies A EBA TTAIE (10,841) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE MEEBHRE
plant and equipment 492 -
Purchase of property, plant and HBEME  BENMEE
equipment (12,203) (1,060)
Net cash flows used in investing RETHMARESRETEE
activities (158,327) (147,885)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
RELERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

2017 2016
—E—+t5 —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REETHEE2RERE
ACTIVITIES
Advance from immediate holding BT AR RN
company 95,666 200,248
Advance from related companies B2k NGB 36,100 -
New borrowings raised FEEEN - 414,689
Proceeds from placing of shares it & % 19 FriS 508 - 60,358
Proceeds from open offer NEABEMERE - 51,616
Capital contribution from non-controlling [ B2 & 3E1E#Ez B &
shareholders of a subsidiary 589 108
Repayment of borrowings BEER (20,403) (294,786)
Repayment to immediate holding EEEZEERARNIE
company - (41,523)
Interest on bank and other RIT REAM B B TS
borrowings paid (14,572) (8,409)
Transaction costs incurred in connection AR EELZ X FHHKA
with open offer - (4,571)
Transaction costs incurred in connection EERMNELZ X FHHK A
with placing of shares - (759)
Net cash flows generated from REEEIEREREFHE
financing activities 97,380 376,971
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH RERBELZEMORD) EINFE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (202,567) 212,483
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#HE&RRESZEY
of year 249,130 36,718
Net foreign exchange difference ME X, = 58 % 58 (12,121) (71)
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRESZEEY
at end of year 34,442 249,130
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH IHRERBEEEWHER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITARKRIE® 34,442 249,130
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRKRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—+tF=A=1T—HIFE

64

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The immediate holding company of
the Company is Achieve Prosper Capital Limited, which
was incorporated in Samoa, and the ultimate holding
company of the Company is EEEE(LE)SHHEMEAR
R A R], which was established in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC"). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the corporate information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Its principal subsidiaries are engaged in the
design and sale of a wide range of electronic products,
sales and installation of elevators, operation and
management of hydroelectric power stations, properties
investment and securities trading.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA") that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 April 2016. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of
these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant
changes to the Group’s accounting policies, presentation
of the Group’s financial statements and amounts reported
for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The application of
these new HKFRSs will not have material impact on the
financial statements of the Group. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results
of operations and financial position.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties and
investments held for trading which are carried at their fair

values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—+tF=A=1T—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise its judgements in the process of applying
the accounting policies. The areas involving critical
judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to these consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. The
Group has power over an entity when the Group
has existing rights that give it the current ability
to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers
its potential voting rights as well as potential
voting rights held by other parties, to determine
whether it has control. A potential voting right
is considered only if the holder has the practical

ability to exercise that right.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on

which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(a)

Consolidation (CONT'D)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration
of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary
and any related accumulated foreign currency

translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to the Company. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—+tF=A=1T—HIFE

3.

68

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (CONT’'D)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to the owners of the Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for
the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business
combination. The cost of acquisition is measured
at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred
and contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Company’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’'s identifiable assets and liabilities is
recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase which is attributed to the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill (CONT'D)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary
is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value
and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added
to the cost of acquisition to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary were recognised
in other comprehensive income (for example,
available-for-sale investment), the amount that
was recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised on the same basis as would be required
if the previously held equity interest were disposed
of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill is
measured at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. The method of measuring impairment losses
of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as
stated in the accounting policy below. Impairment
losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated
profit or loss and are not subsequently reversed.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary
are initially measured at the non-controlling
shareholders’ proportionate share of the net fair
value of the subsidiary’'s identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—+tF=A=1T—HIFE

3.

70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(c)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of an entity but is not control or
joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible, including potential
voting rights held by other entities, are considered
when assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential voting
right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise

or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate
in an acquisition are measured at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is tested for impairment together
with the investment at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’'s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(c)

Associates (CONT'D)

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss, and its share of the post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in the
consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. If the associate subsequently reports
profits, the Group resumes recognising its share
of those profits only after its share of the profits
equals the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate
that results in a loss of significant influence
represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that associate and
(ii) the Group’'s share of the net assets of that
associate plus any remaining goodwill relating to
that associate and any related accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve. If an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint venture,
the Group continues to apply the equity method
and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—+tF=A=1T—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(d) Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars, which is the Company’s
presentation currency and functional

currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency
on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair values in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at the
dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT'D)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (CONT'D)

(iii)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences
are recognised in consolidated profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HILFE

74

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (CONT'D)

(iii)  Translation on consolidation (CONT'D)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (CONT'D)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The estimated useful

lives are as follows:

Hydroelectric power stations and

related infrastructure 2%
Computer equipment 25%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10-25%
Leasehold improvement 3%
Motor vehicles 20-25%
Plant and machinery 5-30%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An
investment property including property that is
being constructed or developed for future use
as investment property is measured initially at its
cost including all direct costs attributable to the

property.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—+tF=A=1T—HIFE

3.

76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(f)

(9)

Investment properties (CONT'D)

After initial recognition, the investment property
is stated at its fair value based on valuation by an
external independent valuer. Gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of the investment
property are recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Property that is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property is stated at
cost less impairment losses until construction or
development is complete, at which time it is stated
at fair value. The difference between the fair value
and the previous carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment
property is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the property,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

The Group as leasee

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases. Lease
payments (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group as leasor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
lessees all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases. Rental
income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(h)

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire; the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—+tF=A=1T—HIFE

3.

78

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(),

(k)

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an
investment is under a contract whose terms require
delivery of the investment within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are
initially measured at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are either investments classified as held for trading
or designated as at fair value through profit or
loss upon initial recognition. These investments
are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of these

investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market
and are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade
and other receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance
is the difference between the carrying amount of
the receivables and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition. The
amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(k)

)

(m)

Trade and other receivables (CONT'D)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods and recognised in profit or loss when
an increase in the recoverable amount of the
receivables can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to the restriction that the carrying amount
of the receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents represent cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
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3.

80

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(n)

(o)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the reporting period.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to
convert the bonds into a fixed number of equity
instruments at a fixed conversion price are regarded
as compound instruments consist of a liability and
an equity component. At the date of issue, the fair
value of the liability component is estimated using
the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debt. The fair value of any derivative
features embedded in the compound instruments is
included in the liability component. The difference
between the proceeds of issue of the convertible
bonds and the fair values assigned to the liability
component, representing the embedded option
for the holder to convert the bonds into equity of
the Group, is included in equity as capital reserve.
The liability component is carried as a liability at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
until extinguished on conversion or redemption.
The derivative components are measured at fair
value with gains and losses recognised in profit or
loss.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the
liability and equity components of the convertible
bonds based on their relative carrying amounts
at the date of issue. The portion relating to the
equity component is charged directly to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(p) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

(q) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

(r) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is
recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

(i) Revenues from the sales of goods are
recognised on the transfer of significant
risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered and the title has passed
to the customers.

(i) Interest income from a financial asset is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

(iii) Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the Group’s right to
receive payment has been established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—+tF=A=1T—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(s) Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the

time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined
contribution retirement schemes which are
available to all employees. Contributions to
the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme
cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the
funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at
the earlier of the dates when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment
of termination benefits.

82  China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2017

3. EKXE%

(s) EEEF

()

(ii)

(iii)

BEZEZRB
REFBREEMRBENE
BEZENRBEER - ARQA
EREEEEREMRZR
BEHMEEFRERHR
BROAGTAAEZAGE
HRE -

BERBRREBRNERKR
R 6 TR -

BRUAESEME

AEERABERBERATEBEMY
FORIRFT B R - NEE R
BEZFAIHFIREBEEER
AFHEezBADHLFE - B8
a5 HIBR AR PR 48 F 5 8 B A R
RAEBEAMES XN ZH

h
A °

KRIEEAREA
RILEBEAINANEETE
PR Az F1m A By 7R 5 B fE
REARARIL S RS I
EREANS(UREARR
HE)HER ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(t)

(u)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled and cash-settled
share-based payments to certain employees. Equity-
settled share-based payments are measured at the
fair value (excluding the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for
the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted
average of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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3.

84

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(v)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group'’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(v)

Taxation (CONT'D)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.
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3.

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(v)

(w)

Taxation (CONT'D)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business
objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If
the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for such
investment properties are measured based on the
expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related
to the Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a
parent of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONT’D)
(w)

Related parties (CONT'D)

(b) An entity is related to the Group (reporting

entity) if any of the following conditions

applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The entity and the Company are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related
to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).
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3.

88

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(w)

(x)

Related parties (CONT'D)

(b) (CONT'D)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group

of which it is a part, provides key

management personnel services to
the Company or to a parent of the

Company.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of the Group’s various lines of
business in different geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of productions processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(y)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets except goodwill, investment
properties, deferred tax assets, investments,
inventories and receivables to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of
any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease.
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3.

90

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(y)

()

Impairment of assets (CONT'D)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or
cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

(aa)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period or those that
indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected
in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements

when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the

directors have made the following judgements that have

the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in

the financial statements.

(a)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the directors have reviewed
the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties
are held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in determining the Group's deferred tax for
investment properties, the directors have rebutted
the presumption that investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered

through sale.

3.

EXREFBEE)

(aa)

BREHREBE

REFHEAKER i&iﬁﬂﬂiﬁkﬁz
BB HIBERHELERRL
gz HmEH 1§:$Eﬁ%ﬁé‘aﬂ¥$
B ARMBERRARR - EEE
RE > BERRFAEZRARERA
RERA M B MR M ERBE -

ERHER EEMAET

FE &St BUR R 2 B R H R

REREFHEBES  EFEHOTHH
BRETERABZLCEAEREATZEZH

4 o

(a)

RIREW R 2 IEERR
NATFEAEEVFENRENE
ZERREME  EXCEHAE
BzREMEALAE  BER/LTEH
ZREMERINBBIE 2B M IE
LL%%%%%&%%%%Q%K

MOKLENSE S BREZARENR
ﬁ°l%*%%m$%l%&é%
EZRERER E2CHEBER
AV EENFEZREMEREE
TyE B E T IAKE Z 5K -

SF—LEER FEFLEEARLAT O



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed

below.

(a) Impairment of trade debtors

Impairment of trade debtors is made based on an
assessment of the recoverability of trade debtors.
The assessment of impairment of trade debtors
involves the use of estimates and judgments.
An estimate for doubtful debts is made when
collection of the full amount is no longer probable,
as supported by objective evidence using available
contemporary and historical information to evaluate
the exposure. Bad debts are written off as incurred.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in the
future is different from the original estimates, such
differences will affect the carrying amount of trade
debtors and thus the impairment loss in the period
in which such estimate is changed.

(b) Fair values of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair values of the investment
properties. In determining the fair values, the
valuer has utilised a method of valuation which
involves certain estimates. The directors have
exercised their judgement and are satisfied that
the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONT’'D)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (CONT'D)

(c)

(d)

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the
physical conditions and saleability of inventories
at the end of the reporting period, and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items identified that are no longer suitable for
use in production. The management estimates the
net realisable value for such finished goods and
consumables primarily based on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. As at 31
March 2017, the carrying amount of inventories
is HK$62,807,000 (2016: HK$54,299,000), net
of accumulated allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventories of HK$1,116,000 (2016:
HK$243,000).

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating units
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 March 2017, the carrying
amount of goodwill is HK$8,512,000 (2016:
HK$17,665,000 net of accumulated impairment
loss of HK$42,138,000 (2016: HK$8,111,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 19.
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94

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (CONT'D)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (CONT'D)

(e)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses annually whether property,
plant and equipment have any indication of
impairment, in accordance with the relevant
accounting policies. The recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment have been
determined based on value in use calculations.
These calculations and valuations require the use
of judgment and estimates on future operating
cash flows and discount rates adopted. Where the
actual cash flows are different from the original
estimate, a material change in the amount of
impairment may arise. As at 31 March 2017, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
is HK$57,148,000 (2016: HK$39,140,000), net of
accumulated impairment loss of HK$3,044,000
(2016: HK$109,000).

(f) Income taxes

As at 31 March 2017, no deferred tax asset was
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position in relation to the estimated
unused tax losses of HK$336,547,000 (2016:
HK$251,634,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The realisability of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future taxable profits generated
are more or less than expected, a material
recognition or reversal of deferred tax asset may
arise, which would be recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which such a recognition or
reversal takes place.
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5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the amount due to immediate holding
company, borrowings and convertible bonds disclosed in
notes 27, 32 and 33, respectively net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include debtors
and deposits, investments held for trading, bank balances
and cash, creditors, amount due from/to immediate
holding company, amount due to a director, borrowings
and convertible bonds. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.
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6.

96

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’'D)

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated in
the functional currencies of the Group entities. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group was exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to note payable (note 30),
borrowing (note 32) and convertible bonds (note
33). The management continuously monitors
interest rate exposure. These borrowings bear
interests at fixed rates.

At 31 March 2017, if interest rates at that date
had been 10 basis points lower with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after
tax for the year would have been HK$172,000
(2016: HK$190,000) higher, arising mainly as a
result of lower interest expense on note payable,
borrowings, and convertible bonds. If interest rates
had been 10 basis points higher, with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after
tax for the year would have been HK$172,000
(2016: HK$190,000) lower, arising mainly as a
result of higher interest expense on note payable,
borrowings, and convertible bonds.

China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2017

6.

MBRBEREERBE(E)

(a)

(b)

S LB

AEBBRRBABLOEKR S - &
ERBBEIENAEEER 2
EREE FhmEbkREREZI
KRk AEEBERLERIER
7 BERBGETERIIMNE G H
B - AR B KT Y EEINER
B YAREFTEREEZEEEHPE
RINE R o

FEEB

74 58 B B 1 3R 2B RE30) © 18
$CH EE32) BT R 18 5 (W E33)
PRZAFEFEER - EEES
SEEAFIEAR  KFHEAE

WEEMNEGE -

R_ZTE—tF=ZA=+—8" W#F
ETRI0OEES  MAEEMES
HRTE - BIFERABRER K
# pn172,000% ;o( = F — X F ¢
190,000 L) FZHRENE
B EERITERELR ZBERE
B o i A EFH10MEE 2 0 AT
EHMEEHEBTTE  AFERE
1&g m M &R 2 172,0008 (= F
— 758 190,000 7L) c TE@EKH
ERNEE - BERITERES IR
SFEMAX -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D)

(c)

(d)

Price risk

The Group’s held-for-trading investments are
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk profiles. Therefore, the Group has

minimal exposure to price risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform
their obligations at the end of reporting period in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt and other
receivables at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

6.
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6.

98

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’'D)

(d)

(e)

Credit risk (CONT'D)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in PRC (2016:
North America). The trade debtors located in PRC
(2016: North America) accounted for 92% (2016:
55%) of the Group’s total trade debtors as at 31
March 2017. The Group also has concentration of
credit risk by customers as 32% (2016: 43%) and
95% (2016: 68%) of the total trade debtors was
due from the Group's largest customer and the
five largest customers, respectively. In the opinion
of the directors, all five largest customers are
customers with good reputation and creditability.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating

agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.
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6.

(e)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. HKEKBREEREEREEX(E)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D)
Liquidity risk (CONT'D) e) REBESRARE)
Repayable
on demand Total
Effective or within undiscounted Carrying
2017 “E—tF interest rate 1year 1-2years 2-5years cash flow amounts
REXY REER
BERAZE  SMEEE 1-2% 2-58 RERELH REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER THER TER
Creditors and accrued charges  JE(BRIE 1 e+ 2 - 111,905 - - 111,905 111,905
Amount due to immediate EREZEZRAR
holding company B - 33,344 - - 33,344 33,344
Amount due to related FEfEBH AR
companies - 36,100 - - 36,100 36,100
Amount due to a director ENESRR - 172 - - 172 172
Convertible bonds ARES 16.2% 2,256 77,116 - 79,372 72,174
Borrowings EE 10.0% 26,893 86,361 - 113,254 99,500
210,670 163,477 - 374,147 353,195
Repayable
on demand Total
Effective or within undiscounted Carrying
2016 N3 interest rate Tyear 1-2years 2-5years cash flow amounts
REXH REEH
ERME  SIMERE 1-2% 2-5% HERRLE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHL FHL FHL FHL
Creditors and accrued charges [N EBERESER - 56,209 15,011 - 71,220 71,060
Amount due to immediate [ERERERA A
holding company E] - 182,319 - - 182,319 182,319
Amount due to a director ERESER - 172 - - 172 172
Convertible bonds MakES 16.2% 2,256 76,119 - 78,375 64,399
Borrowings gE 8.5% 22,325 33,514 89,424 145,263 119,903
263,281 124,644 89,424 477,349 437,853
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT’'D)

(f) Categories of financial instruments

6.

MBRBEREERBE(E)

f) ERITANER

At 31 March
R=A=+—8H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZT—KR#F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets: ERMEE
Investments held for trading HIEEEZRE 380 451
Loans and receivables (including cash and EXLEKEE(BIFERENESSE
cash equivalents) E%) 277,837 366,943
278,217 367,394
Financial liabilities: SHEE:
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost IR RATIBR Y Hib &R B & 353,195 437,853
353,195 437,853

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises
into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used

to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and

transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date

7. DVEFEE)
AEE 2 B TR B L F SIS R R L
HHBERBRR=ESR2BANHAR

of the event or change in circumstances that caused the B o
transfer.
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at (a) R-ZE—tF=A=+—HhEE
31 March 2017: ZAFEER:
Fair value measurements using: Total
ARAFESTE Loy
Description E2r Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017
E—R EIR =k —EB—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET TET TET
Recurring fair value BEMELAFEFE
measurements:
Financial assets at fair value RAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss SREE
Listed securities in BB LMHES
Hong Kong 139 - - 139
Listed securities outside BB ETHESH
Hong Kong 241 - - 241
Investment properties REM%E
Commercial - PRC BE-F - - 206,477 206,477
Total recurring fair value &EMLAFETE
measurements k] 380 - 206,477 206,857
Fair value measurements using: Total
ARATESE et
Description E3r Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016
£ F_& FZH T —AF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FHET FET
Recurring fair value KREHANTEFTZ
measurements:
Financial assets at fair value 1ZATVEFABZZ
through profit or loss STREE
Listed securities in BB EMEE
Hong Kong 211 - - 211
Listed securities outside  FHEUIN EHEH
Hong Kong 240 - - 240
Investment properties wREME
Commercial — PRC BE— = - - 208,631 208,631
Total recurring fair value &FHEHLQTETZ
measurements “%E 451 - 208,631 209,082

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3

fair value measurements in both years.
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D) 7. ARA¥EFE(E)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value (b) BREF=FWMAUAFEFEZE
based on level 3: E¥E
Investment
properties Total
Description 3 Level 3 2017
BREYE st
E=4h —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 April 2016 RZZE—R"EMNA—H 208,631 208,631
Purchases EE 53,261 53,261
Total gains or losses recognised in RIBas R RER 2 0 B sk B 1B 45 (#)

profit or loss (#)
Disposal

W EE
ﬁnm
i

Exchange realignment

(28,315) (28,315)
(14,352) (14,352)
(12,748) (12,748)

At 31 March 2017 RZE—tF=ZHA=+—H 206,477 206,477
(#) Include gains or losses for assets  (#)B 4% A R & HI R A% F sk B 18
held at end of reporting period (28,315) (28,315)
Investment
properties Total
Description i Level 3 2016
wEYE BET
F=H B RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 April 2015 RZZ2—HFMA—H - -
Purchases e 222,762 222,762
Total gains or losses recognised in RIER PR 2 m A B BB W)
profit or loss (#) (5,863) (5,863)
Exchange realignment P =R Ff =& (8,268) (8,268)
At 31 March 2016 R-ZE—RF=A=+—H 208,631 208,631
(#) Include gains or losses for assets  (#)B3E R 45 HA AR #Y % =k 518
held at end of reporting period (5,863) (5,863)

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
including those for assets held at end of reporting
period are presented in decrease in fair value of
investment properties in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D)

(c)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the
Group and valuation techniques and inputs
used in fair value measurements at 31 March
2017:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for
the fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair value measurements. The financial
controller reports directly to the Board of Directors
for these fair value measurements. Discussions of
valuation processes and results are held between
the financial controller and the Board of Directors
at least twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
will normally engage external valuation experts
with the recognised professional qualifications and
recent experience to perform the valuations.

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value
measurements are mainly:

- Price per square metre (using market direct
comparable and taking into account of
location and other individual factors, such
as road, frontage, size of property etc.)

7.

DNFEFE(E)

(c)
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONT'D) 7. “RFEFE(E)
(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the (c) R-FB-tF=A=+—8 ' KK

Group and valuation techniques and inputs

used in fair value measurements at 31 March

2017: (CONT’'D)

Level 3 fair value measurements

E=RATVENE

BEERAZHERERARATERZ
FFEGERMREARE (&

(48)

Effect on
fair value for
Valuation Unobservable increase of Total
Description technique inputs Range inputs 2017
EpNpE3) st
Ed “ER % THRER A HE B NYEzFE “Z—tF
HK$'000
FER
Commercial properties under Direct Adjusted 5% - 25% Increase 168,546
construction in Liaoning comparison factor on
method retail potential
NRBEZERBANE BEREE ZEBENREEY 20
Adjusted factor 5% - 25% Increase
on accessibility
EEEEAREY i
Completed commercial properties Direct Price per RMB18,333 Increase 37,931
comparison square metre to
method RMB32,500
EEARBERANE HEREE BYARER AR®18,3337 &0
z
AR%32,5007
Effect on
fair value for
Valuation Unobservable increase of Total
Description technique inputs Range inputs 2016
BALINH #Et
FiE HERE EE:LEIN §: §E NTEZPE —E-RE
HK$'000
TET
Commercial properties under Direct Adjusted 5% - 25% Increase 208,631
construction in Liaoning comparison factor on
method retail potential
UREEsEREBRNE BERLBRE ZEENAERY &m
Adjusted factor 5% - 25% Increase
on accessibility
EEHERE &N
E3

During the two years, there were no changes in

the valuation techniques used.
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on types of goods delivered
by each operating division.

The Group's operating divisions are as follows:

(1) Design and sale of electronic products
(representing consumer electronic audio and video
equipment, karaoke equipment and accessories)
("Electronic products business”)

(2) Sales and installation of elevators

(3) Operation and management of hydroelectric power
stations (“Hydroelectric power business”)

(4) Properties investment

(5) Securities trading
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 8. 2EEH(E)
(a) Segment revenue and results (a) PTEBARES
An analysis of the Group's revenue, which NTAEASERAIZHEEED A
represents sales of goods, and results by reportable W (BIEERHEHE) REE
and operating segments is as follows:
Operation
and
management
Design and of
sale of  Sales and hydroelectric
electronic installation power  Properties  Securities
products of elevators stations investment trading Total
EfEM R KE
R RME HERZE EEREE MERE EHEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET TR FHT FET
Year ended BE-E-t&
31 March 2017 =R=+-H
LFEE
TURNOVER HEE 457,858 169,990 4,167 - - 632,015
SEGMENT RESULTS  niE%4E 8,313 33,069 419 (28,315) 17 13,503
Interest income Al M 18
Unallocated expenses RO E Y (28,641)
Share of profits of ~ FE{FEEZ D AEA
an associate 662
Gain on disposal of ~ HEREMEY
investment property Uiz 9,259
Finance costs B E R (12,248)
Loss before taxation B A1EE (17,447)
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8.

(a)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 8. EERE
Segment revenue and results (CONT'D) (a) SPEWAREEE)
Design and sale of
electronic Properties Securities
products investment trading Total
BfEM
RETRHE MERE FHEE HET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHAT
Year ended HE-ZT—RF
31 March 2016 —A=+—8
IHFE
TURNOVER EEH 425,523 - - 425,523
SEGMENT RESULTS DHEER (2,683) 4,348 6 1,671
Interest income RN & 54
Unallocated expenses KA EMAX (3,686)
Share of profits of FEAEEE 2 AR
an associate v ) 247
Finance costs BB AR (12,781)
Loss before taxation ~ BFiAIEE (14,495)
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’'D) 8. 2EEH(E)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) SEEERERE
An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by NTAEASERAIZHEEED A
reportable and operating segments is as follows: ZEBEREE:
Operation
and
management
Design of
and sale of  Sales and hydroelectric
electronic installation power  Properties  Securities
products of elevators stations investment trading Total
ETEM E5 KE
RitRHE HERZE EEREE NERE ES5EE ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TEr TEr TEr TER TER
As at 31 March 2017 RZB-+&
=ZA=t-H
ASSETS R
Segment assets PEAE 117,862 229,192 83,167 237,245 380 667,846
Unallocated corporate assets AP EAaEE 11,983
Consolidated total assets A #8EE 679,829
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities PEAR 16,675 58,055 4,359 101,394 - 180,483
Unallocated corporate FABDAERE
liabilities 184,482
Consolidated total liabilities A4 &E 364,965
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8.

Unallocated corporate assets mainly represent interest

in an associate, deferred tax assets, deposit paid

for investments and bank balances and cash.

Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly represent

amount due to immediate holding company,

amount due to a director, deferred tax liabilities,

borrowings and convertible bonds.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’'D) 8. SNEERE)
Segment assets and liabilities (CONT'D) (b) THREEREEB(E)
Operation
and
management
Design of
and sale of  hydroelectric
electronic power Properties Securities
products stations investment trading Total
EfEm KEL
RERIEE BERER NERE EHEE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHT TR AT FA
As at 31 March 2016 R-ZE-"E=ZA=1-H
ASSETS 8
Segment assets PREE 108,440 35,781 303,284 451 447,956
Unallocated corporate assets KDEABEE 381,488
Consolidated total assets BiEEE 829,444
LIABILITIES &
Segment liabilities NEEE 68,061 20,384 - - 88,445
Unallocated corporate FABERAEE
liabilities 362,122
Consolidated total liabilities At aE 450,567
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BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HILFE

(c)

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’'D) 8. 2EEH(E)
Other segment information (c) HigpEER
Operation
and
management
Design of
and sale of  Sales and hydroelectric
electronic installation power  Properties  Securities
products of elevators stations investment trading Total
EYEm BB KB
RIREE HERRE EEREE  NERE E5EE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TERT TET TET TE
Amounts included in the  HADBEEH DB
measurement of segment EE;TE 2 FUE -
results or segment assets:
Year ended BE-E-t%
31 March 2017 ZR=1+-HLEE
Additions of property, RNEME  BERR
plant and equipment 2,600 - 1,098 8,505 - 12,203
Additions of property, AlE-HRBARRE
plant and equipment MmE - BERR
arising from acquisition
of a subsidiary - - 16,638 - - 16,638
Additions of investment  RERENE
properties - - - 53,261 - 53,261
Decrease in fair value of R &Y% 2 A FERD
investment properties - - - 28,315 - 28,315
Allowance for doubtful ~ REEHE
debts 712 - - - - 712
Depreciation of property, #% - BERZENE
plant and equipment 1,999 - 3,921 177 - 6,097
Allowance for obsolete and BE R & #7785 2 &/
slow-moving inventories 873 - - - - 873
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D)

(c) Other segment information (CONT'D)

Operation and

8.

(c)

management Design and sale

THEER(E)

Hitt o BER(E)

of hydroelectric  of electronic Properties Securities
power stations products investment trading Total
ETER KE
RETREE EBERER NERE BHEE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT TET TAR TER
Amounts included in the MADBLEINE
measurement of segment BEFEZHAE:
results or segment assets:
Year ended 31 March 2016 EHZ-Z-A~f
ZAZt-HLEE
Additions of property, plant  FENE - BERRE
and equipment - 1,060 - - 1,060
Additions of property, plant ~ EKE—FEHEARRE
and equipment arising from  #%% - BERZE
acquisition of a subsidiary 35,781 - - - 35,781
Additions of investment NEREME
properties - - 222,762 - 222,762
Decrease in fair value of RENEZATERD
investment properties - - 5,863 - 5,863
Allowance for doubtful debts  REREHE - 683 - - 683
Decrease in fair value of BEEERBZAT
investments held for trading @& - - - 2 2
Depreciation of property, plant #1% - BERFENE
and equipment - 1,340 - - 1,340
Allowance for obsolete and ~ RERBHFE 2 EE
slow-moving inventories - 159 - - 159
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(c)

(d)

8.

DEER(E)

Other segment information (CONT'D) (c) HttomER(E)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief EHERTEZELERREERN
operating decision maker but not included in the ADHEBI S BEEFHEZHE
measurement of segment results or segment assets: L/ N
2017 2016
—T—+F “ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Interest in an associate REEE N BIES 3,703 6,792
Share of profits of an associate i {5 B & X A1 662 247
Finance costs A& AR 7R (12,248) (12,781)
Geographical segments (d) &5 38
The Group's operations are located in United REBZEBDMBREMNRERE
States of America (“USA"), Canada, Europe, Hong ([ZBED - m2EX BN BEE
Kong (place of domicile), People’s Republic of %) hEARLMBE(THE])

China (“PRC") and other countries.

The Group's revenue from external customers (based
on location of customers) and information about
its non-current assets by geographical location of
the assets are detailed below:

Revenue from external customers

REMBEK -

REBRBEIDER 2 Ham(BEP
FriEih e ) R ERMASERES EEE R
(RIFEMRBDEEMEME) ZF1BW
-

REMBEF 2 W@
Year ended 31 March Non-current assets (note)
BE=ZA=1tT—HLEE FERBEE (KMHFE)
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF —E—+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FET FHET FET
USA Egei 389,093 356,446 22,006 3,527
Hong Kong F> - 25,116 24,458
Canada JIlEWN 46,491 47,087 65 -
Europe B M 22,114 18,016 - -
PRC M 174,157 273,482 364,168
Other countries HAhER 160 3,974 - -
632,015 425,523 320,669 392,153
Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets. M3f : ERPHEETRIEBELEFIBEE
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT'D) 8.

(e)

Information about major customers (e)

Revenue from customers of the corresponding

years contributing over 10% of the total revenue

of the Group are as follows:

THEER(E)

IREFEHR
ERFELAKEAKRAI0%A L
ZEPHmEEINMT

2017 2016
—E2—tF =ZZT—RF
Segment Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ol Bff & THET FET
Customer A ZEA Design and sales of & FEMmRTMIEE (i)
electronic N/A
products T iE A 57,526
Customer B =FB Design and sales of EFE M MHEE
electronic
products 97,475 61,448
Note: MisE -
() The corresponding revenue did not contribute (i) HERZEAEEREEFEZ

over 10% of the total sales of the Group for the

relevant years.

AW e A B 10% ©

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HfA

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Dividend income from investments held H{EE &K E ZIREUW A
for trading 9 8
Interest income T B 2 18 54
Others Hih 64 609
91 671
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11.

10. OTHER GAIN AND LOSS 10. HftlhzmRER
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Other gain/(loss) comprises: Hablezs, (&1E)84E
Exchange loss, net X EE - #5 (2,229) (2,781)
Allowance for doubtful debts RIRBE (712) (683)
Decrease in fair value of BEEBEZREZ AFERD
investments held for trading (71) (2)
Gain on disposal of investment HEREME RS
properties 9,259 -
6,247 (3,466)
FINANCE COSTS 1. @MEKK
2017 2016
—E—tF NS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Interest expenses on: FERXE
- borrowings — e 12,152 5,660
— convertible bonds — AR ES 10,031 9,774
- note payable —ERRE 164 499
Less: Amount capitalised to o LRI EME
investment properties under B AR IR
construction (10,099) (3,152)
12,248 12,781
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12.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s loss for the year is arrived at after charging/

12. EEBA
AEEEEHEHENG, (ER):

(crediting):
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET
Cost of inventories sold HEFEMRA 469,223 322,478
Staff costs (including directors’ ETIRA(BIERERE):
remuneration):
Wages and salaries ITERFE 27,627 25,586
Pension scheme contributions IRRET B R
— Defined contribution scheme — MG E 480 494
Share-based payments AR 19 A R Y 5 3R 212 130
28,319 26,210
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN B & 2,321 2,786
Depreciation of property, plant WE - BENEETE
and equipment 6,097 1,340
Allowance for obsolete and slow-moving [R& R#ESE
inventories (included in cost of sales) (BFEHERAN) 2 B 873 159
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREWE 2 W (9,259) -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEAT TR S B8R
payments 782 -
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 34,027 -
Impairment loss on property, plant and %% - E &&RE 2 BIE
equipment &8 2,935 -
Impairment loss on investment in an A E N REEE
associate 3,751 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HE%E MELEREER
equipment 370 -
Minimum lease payments under operating BtA FIB B & &HL X2
lease in respect of — Land and buildings HER4E -+t RET 6,113 5,236
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors and chief executive

13. EENRANVEESFMALTEHES
(a) EERTHEAR

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-Z—tH=B=+—-HLLEE

Salaries
and other Retirement
short term benefits
employee scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments
FEeRHEM BRIKEF
e EHEEEA sTEIHR B R
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fft = FHBT FHET FHBT FTHET
Executive directors: HITES
Wang Jing T & - - - -
Wang Xing Qiao T2% - 62 - 62
Chen Wan Jin REd (i) - - - -
Zhao Shuang R - - - -
Non-executive FITES:
director:
Li Jun =} (i) - - - -
Independent BAFHTES
non-executive
directors:
Yang Xin Hua T EE (i) - 80 - 80
Wang Ping FF - 300 - 300
Cheng Tai Kwan, Sunny Z5A%3 - 300 - 300
Song Wenke R F (iii) - 115 - 115
- 857 - 857
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

(a) Directors and chief executive (CONT'D)

B.%%&E&%%ﬁ%ki%ﬁ

(a) EERTHRARE)

For the year ended 31 March 2016
HE-_Z—RE=ZA=1+T—HILEFE

Salaries and
other short Retirement

term benefits
employee scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments

HekHEMm RARAEF
Me HHEERN sHEIHT R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FHET FAT AT
Executive directors: BITESE
Wang Jing T & - - - -
Wang Xing Qiao TES - - - -
Chen Wan Jin RE 4 - - - -
Zhao Shuang B - - - _
Non-executive director: JE#TES :
Li Jun S - - - -
Independent BYFHITES
non-executive
directors:
Yang Xin Hua S - 300 - 300
Wang Ping FF - 300 - 300
Cheng Tai Kwan, Sunny ZfX$5 - 300 - 300
- 900 - 900
Notes: BfEE -
0) Resigned on 6 July 2016 (i) RZE—XRFLANRNBEE

(i) Resigned on 31 August 2016

(iii) Appointed on 6 July 2016

(i) R=F—RENA=T—HB&EIE

(iii) RZTE—R"FLARNBEZE
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13.
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

(a) Directors and chief executive (CONT'D)

No performance related incentive payments were
paid to the directors of the Company for both

years.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group. The emoluments of the non-
executive directors shown above were mainly for
their services as directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries. The emoluments of the independent
non-executive directors shown above were mainly

for their services as directors of the Company.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors
waived any emoluments in both years.
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BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EERTANVBSEHFMA LIS

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D) (4&)

(b) Five highest paid individual emoluments (b)

The five highest paid individuals of the Group
included zero (2016: three) directors, details
of whose remuneration are set out above. The
emoluments of the remaining five (2016: two)
highest paid employees are as follows:

TEBREHM AL

AEERTEGESHFMZALEBEET
F(ZEBE-—RF: ZR)EF AW
BEMSZFBERLEXHE - £
BRAB(ZT—RF: MB)RSH
HEE zMemT :

2017 2016
—E—+fF —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Salaries and other short term employee ¥4 K& H 55 BB B & F
benefits 3,439 2,498
Retirement benefits scheme contributionsiE k@ 5T & {4t 3% 16 15
3,455 2,513

Emoluments of these employees were within the
following bands:

WEREMES 2 SHBEWT ¢

Number of employees

EEAH
2017 2016
Emolument band: B & & F -
Nil - HK$1,000,000 £ 71,000,000/ T 4 1
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 t:E
2,500,000/ 7T 1 1
5 2
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14. TAXATION 14. 18

The charge comprises: T EIE
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Current year REE

Taxation in PRC KB 2R 11,684 -
Taxation in other jurisdictions Htbal kiR 2 IR 416 -
Deferred taxation TEIEF IR 9,459 1,504
21,559 1,504

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2016:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
financial statements as the Group has no assessable profit
for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,

the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2016: 25%).

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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RE MR
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BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

14. TAXATION (CONT'D) 14. BLE(E)
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before REZRENHGE B REMEAKRR
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss ZBRBAIEEEERNT
and other comprehensive income as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Loss before taxation FRELRTEE (17,447) (14,495)
Tax calculated at the domestic tax rate 3ZAHFI X 16.5%
of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) (ZE—RE 1 16.5%)it &
ZTIE (2,879) (2,392)
Tax effect of share of results of an BB E N NREEZHETE
associate (159) (41)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for/NA] 154 & F ~ B 15 52 22
taxation purposes 13,905 7,681
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for BAERBW R < MG E
taxation purposes (237) (1,881)
Effect of different tax rates of REMBEEREE 2B
subsidiaries operating in other NETRBE R
jurisdictions 974 1,133
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FRERFRIBEEEBZ RETE 10,492 1,936
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BB 5T ARHER 2 Fi BB
recognised (762) (4,717)
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 225 -
Others Hh - (215)
Taxation for the year AFEEBRE 21,559 1,504

15. DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for each of the years ended 31 March 2017 and
2016.

15.

Hﬁ /%\
ERTRBENHE-F—LFR=F
FZAZ - BLEREFZEMRE
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16. LOSS PER SHARE 16. BREAE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is
based on the following data: BRERNRBEEBEBIRBEUATEIETE
2017 2016
—E—tF “E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Loss attributable to owners of the Company for AFFEERERK
the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share #5#EE 2 AN A 7
BB AEGEE (46,055) (22,243)

Number of shares

o EE
2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E-RF
Weighted average number of shares for the RATEERERK
purpose of basic and diluted loss per share BEEE 2
FHRNEE 3,650,710,605 1,554,130,401
For the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, the BE_Z—+H&N_ZT—RF=ZA=+—H
calculation of diluted loss per share does not assume the IEFE - st EEREEEER HRET mE
exercise of the conversion of the Company's outstanding BMARNB MARERAIMRES - BAEET
convertible bonds as it would result in a decrease in the EREHZREBRRD

loss per share.
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17.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. REWE

Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties construction Total
ERMIREE EEREMHE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHExT FHET
FAIR VALUE: DNFE
At 1 April 2015 R-ZT—AEMA—H - - -
Additions NE - 222,762 222,762
Decrease in fair value NFER D - (5,863) (5,863)
Exchange realignment P K B - (8,268) (8,268)
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April RAZZE—X<E=A=+—H
2016 EZZ—-XRFMOMA—A - 208,631 208,631
Additions NE 23,062 30,199 53,261
Transfer [ 18,514 (18,514) -
Decrease in fair value N ERD (3,161) (25,154) (28,315)
Disposal & (14,352) (14,352)
Exchange realignment [ K 3] & (484) (12,264) (12,748)
At 31 March 2017 R-_E—tF=ZA=+—H 37,931 168,546 206,477
At 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, the investment RIB—+HE=A=+—HRZIZE-RF=

properties are situated in the PRC.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties had
been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out
by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected of the Group. The
valuations were arrived at by reference to recent market
prices for similar properties in similar locations and
conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group pledged
the investment properties under construction of
HK$168,546,000 (2016: HK$188,967,000) to secure the
general credit facilities granted to the Group.

A=1+—8 REMELRTEH -

AEBREMEZ A FEDREENEERT
BRE2BUABRRERENGMTREEE
AEBEARIPETHENEMS - &b
B2 E R MG Z RERYE AT
M{ERER -

RBREBRR AEBEBEFRTERE
¥ %168,546,000%8 m( = T — X F ¢
188,967,000/ 7T ) A JE (R AN 55 B E 1) —
BEERE -
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ - - BMEKRE
Hydroelectric
power
stations Furniture,
Motor  Leasehold and related ~ Computer fixtures and  Plant and
vehicles improvement infrastructure equipment equipment  machinery Total
HE KEHER i
"E MERE RBERR BlRE RERZE BERES @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TEx TEx TEx TEx TER
COST OR VALUATION: ~ BAEffE :
At 1 April 2015 RZE-1%
mA—H - - - 2,196 3,466 19,125 24,787
Additions RE - - - - - 1,060 1,060
Acquisition of a subsidiary 4t — K E 2 A
(note 37) (HizE37) - - 28,489 - - 7,292 35,781
At 31 March 2016 RZE-R%F
“A=f-H - - 28,489 2,196 3,466 27,477 61,628
Additions NE 1,098 8,505 - - 1,556 1,044 12,203
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y& —FEHEAR
(note 37) (Mi5¥37) - - 13,111 - - 3,527 16,638
Disposals k- (919) - - - - - (919)
Exchange realignment fE &% - - (2,221) - - (775) (2,996)
At 31 March 2017 i 3
ZR=1—H 179 8,505 39,379 2,196 5,022 31,273 86,554
ACCUMULATED RATERAE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT:
At 1 April 2015 NZE-1%
mA—H - - - 2,163 2,611 16,374 21,148
Provided during the year ARF[E# A - - - 11 171 1,158 1,340
At 31 March 2016 i3
=A=1-H - - - 2,174 2,782 17,532 22,488
Provided during the year ZAFE&E 81 177 3,335 9 252 2,243 6,097
Written back on disposal &80 (57) - - - - - (57)
Impairment loss AEER - - 2,329 - - 606 2,935
Exchange realignment  EXFE M - (1,538) - - (518) (2,057)
At 31 March 2017 RZF—tF
“A=f-H 23 177 4,126 2,183 3,034 19,863 29,406
CARRYING AMOUNT:  BREfE
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F
ZR=1+—H 156 8,328 35,253 13 1,988 11,410 57,148
At 31 March 2016 RZE—R%F
=A=1t-H - - 28,489 22 684 9,945 39,140
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18.

(CONT’D)

As at 31 March 2017, the value in use calculation uses
cash flow projections based on the financial budgets
approved by the management covering a 5 year period.
Key assumptions used by the management in the value
in use calculation of the cash-generating unit include
budgeted gross profit margin. The pre-tax discount
rate used for estimating the value in use is 13.59%. As
at 31 March 2017, the impairment test results in the
recognition of an impairment loss of property, plant and
equipment of HK$2,935,000 in the Hydroelectric power
business, which is expensed in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

M- BERRE(E)

RZZE—+F=ZA=+—8 " EHEE:
BEAREBEMAZVBEEEEFRR
CRTE AREF - EEERFTERS
ELBUMEABENER  FE0ER
HEMNE -t EREBEZRANTRER
13.59% c R=ZT—EF=A=+—80 " &
BERAHBBNKEEBH #R2,935,000%
TTZME  BERZEREERE  REEE
mEEMEERA KRR TN o

19. GOODWILL 19. BE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT

CcoST BAE
At beginning of the reporting period e R LR 25,776 25,776
Acquisition of a subsidiary W Hes — PRI Bt /B8 & &) 24,874 -
50,650 25,776

IMPAIRMENT AT

At beginning of the reporting period R E 1) 8,111 8,111
Impairment loss VEREY SEi 34,027 -
At end of the reporting period RS IR 42,138 8,111

CARRYING VALUE SREE
At end of the reporting period RIREEAR 8,512 17,665
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19.

GOODWILL (CONT'D)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the cash-generating units (“CGUs") that
are expected to benefit from that business combination.
The carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as

19. BE(E)

FEWER  CESHESHEESOIREETE
HRRZrEeNPEXanRieELEN
(ReEREM])  BAERESES RN
™~

follows:
Electronic products  Hydroelectric power

business business Total

BErEMER KEHEK st
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
“E—tF —TAF ZB—+tF —TAF ZB—+F —T~F
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET TET FET FET TET
Goodwill [EES 8,512 17,665 - - 8,512 17,665

Impairment testing of goodwill

Electronic products business cash-generating unit

The amount of goodwill is allocated to the cash-
generating units within the Electronic products business
segment. Goodwill is tested for impairment by the
management by estimating the recoverable amount
of these cash-generating units based on value in use
calculations.

The recoverable amount has been determined on the basis
of value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculation are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to revenue and
direct costs during the budgeted period. The management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific. Changes in revenue and direct costs
are based on past practices and expectations of future

changes in the market.
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19.

— Tt F=A=1T—HIEFE

GOODWILL (CONT'D)
Impairment testing of goodwill (CONT'D)

Electronic products business cash-generating unit
(CONT'D)

During the year, the Group performed impairment review
for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts derived from
the most recent financial budget for the next five years
approved by the management and cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using 0% (2016: 0%)
growth rate. The rate used to discount the forecast cash
10%). As at 31 March
2017, the impairment test results in the recognition

flows is approximately 10% (2016:

of an impairment loss of goodwill of HK$9,153,000 in
the Electronic products business, which is expensed in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

Hydroelectric power business cash-generating unit

The amount of goodwill is allocated to the cash-
generating units within the Hydroelectric power business
segment. Goodwill is tested for impairment by the
management by estimating the recoverable amount
of these cash-generating units based on value in use

calculations.

The recoverable amount has been determined on the basis
of value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculation are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to revenue and
direct costs during the budgeted period. The management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific. Changes in revenue and direct costs
are based on past practices and expectations of future
changes in the market.

19.

BmE(E)
BEZHENH(E)
EFEREBROEMEL(F)

RAFE  AEERBEEREZHERLR
FRYVEBEMELAZR S RETEAEHN
BERE URIE0% (ZE—7RF  0%)
HEEXHEERIFRZAESRE - AR: ;%'t
BARESREZWIRENB10% (ZF

F:10%) R-_T—+F=A *—?-—E :
BTFEMEBZREARERAEREER
E/E5189,153,0008 0 - ERERAIBERE
fib 2 U R P R

o

NEXEBREELEN

BESBENETREXBOTAZREESE
PR E R T B T AR RIZ
ZERSEREM 2 AT

BN o
BEFAEEHE
& EEMmHET °

A EEeRNREREEFEEEE - £5
BEFEEMELIZBRASENMEE
BEXRULRBEHAKSMEZKA 2 BT
BE) o  BEEERMBRBEANRMGFREREX
ZHNERRTISREHEREREENRS
EJ—LD R R o W R ERKA Z BRI
BEBHI ST IS ARKBEEEL A

—E2-tEEHR PHEFEKEARIF 127



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—+tF=A=1T—HIFE

19.

GOODWILL (CONT’D)
Impairment testing of goodwill (CONT'D)

Hydroelectric power business cash-generating unit
(CONT'D)

As at 31 March 2017, the value in use calculation uses
cash flow projections based on the financial budgets
approved by the management covering a 5 year period.
Key assumptions used by the management in the value
in use calculation of the cash-generating unit include
budgeted gross profit margin. The pre-tax discount rate
used for estimating the value in use is 13.59%. As at 31
March 2017, the impairment test results in the recognition
of an impairment loss of goodwill of HK$24,874,000 in
the Hydroelectric power business, which is expensed in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.
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20. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 20. FEHBAT
(a) General information of subsidiaries (a) M D E 2z —REFR
Details of the Company’'s principal subsidiaries are ARG EEMBARFRERT :
as follows:

Nominal value

of issued
Place of ordinary
incorporation share capital/ Percentage of equity
or registration/ registered interests attributable to
Company name operations capital the Company Principal activities
NCIEE AR BRTZEREK
XN A/AMERAEE AQREERAEZEIL TEER
2017 2016
“E-tE  BRF
Cosmo Communications USA/Canada US$1,571,000 93.80% 93.80% Trading of electronic
Corporation appliances and
("Cosmo") investment holding
eV EVN 1,571,000% T EREREHRREER
Harvest Way Holdings  British Virgin Islands uss$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited ("BVI")
HEgRRES([H v REZR
BEBRES])
Master Light Enterprises Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited
B 2B REZR
Starlight Electronics USA USA Us$10,000 100% 100% Trading in electronic
Inc. products
%HE 10,000 7T BREREH
Starlight Marketing Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Securities trading and
Limited trading in electronic
products
e 28T BHEERETERESD
Starlite Consumer USA Us$20 100% 100% Trading in electronic
Electronics (USA) Inc. products
%HE 20%ETT BREMEH
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20. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

(a)

General information of subsidiaries (CONT'D)

Nominal value

20. EEWBE AT (E)
(a) M AT 22—

REB(

of issued
Place of ordinary
incorporation share capital/ Percentage of equity
or registration/ registered interests attributable to
Company name operations capital the Company Principal activities
NCIEE MK LRER DBROTEBRR
EE X/AMERAEE AQREERFEZEIL TEER
2017 2016
e R
The Singing Machine USA US$380,706 51.34% 51.39% Trading in consumer
Company, Inc. karaoke audio
("SMC")** equipment and
electronic products
EX I 28 380,706 %7 KB FHOKEBRER
ETERES
REFABEEFEAFRAR PRCH RMB20,000,000 100% 100% Properties investment
and sales and
installation of elevators
e AR MERERHER
20,000,0007T BRE
REEHEXFMRAA  PRCY RMB20,000,000 100% 100% Properties investment
B+ AR MERE
20,000,000t
REMHEKNEEFR PRCH RMB500,000 100% 100% Operation and
AA] management of a
hydroelectronic
power station
E AR#500,0007T KEWHELNER
REMGEBRBENR PRC* RMB50,000,000 100% 100% Operation and
KNEEFRAF management of a
hydroelectronic
power station
R AR KEWES RER
50,000,0007C
* These subsidiaries were PRC wholly foreign owned * ZEWMBLARRTEIIEHEED
enterprises. £
o The common stock of SMC is quoted on the Over- *x BEEBREXESINFE

the-Counter Bulletin Board in the United States of

America.
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20. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)
(a)

General information of subsidiaries (CONT'D)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affect the results of the year or
constitute a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
result in

would, in the opinion of the directors,

particulars of excessive length.

Other than Harvest Way Holdings Limited and
Seasonal Bliss Limited which are held directly
by the Company, all other subsidiaries are held
indirectly by the Company. None of the subsidiaries
had any loan capital outstanding at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

The table below provides details of non-wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Group that have material
non-controlling interests:

20. FEMBAT(E)

(a) MEBATZ—REH(F)
EERE FEFIARDNER A
MHAFE S BEHETHYE
KR AETDEEFELEHG
EERBMBREMNB AR Y
S ERBRATE -

FrHarvest Way Holdings Limited &
Seasonal Bliss Limited B4R A&
BEEAN EEMKERRE R
RAGIRERE - RAFEXAEF
EAEESHE SEFEBRREE
AIREBERER -

TRENAKEREEEAIZEAE
G EREMBRARZFE

Proportion of

Place of
incorporation

and principal by non-control

and voting rights held

ownership interests

Profit allocated

ling to non-controlling Accumulated non-

Name of place of interests interests controlling interests
subsidiary business As at 31 March As at 31 March As at 31 March
FEREBEHENHMERE IEREFERERN
AR ERRREELE gl BRI FERES
MEBAREE TEEEME R=A=+—H R=A=+—H R=A=+-—H
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE—tF ZERF ZEB-F ZTRF ZEB—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHER TET
SMC (note a) USA
BE(Mf5Fa) e 48.66%  48.61% 7,207 6,516 33,033 25,096
Notes: B 5 -
(a) The subsidiaries of SMC are all wholly-owned (a) RREFERN  BENKMBEAR

during both years.

VR EHRS -
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20. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 20. FERBLAT(E)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (CONT'D) (a) MEARZ—RER(
Summarised financial information in respect TXHEINAEEES EANFEERE
of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material H=BRAAIZHMBERBME - TX
non-controlling interests is set out below. The WU BER B EREHEER
summarised financial information below represents RBLZATZEHE o

amounts before elimination of intragroup
transactions.

sMC Bg
2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FET
Non-current assets ERBEE 22,006 22,314
Current assets REEE 72,068 60,889
Current liabilities mBAaE (28,556) (39,105)
Equity #E 65,518 44,098
Revenue W 5 412,770 381,081
Other income and expenses Hiham ks (16,831) (367,794)
Profit and total comprehensive AEERMNE2EK B
income for the year 21,420 13,287
Net cash inflow from operating KEEEIR S RAFE
activities 7,929 19,906
Net cash outflow from investing R&EEHIE © KL F5E
activities (1,156) (1,059)
Net cash outflow from financing Ft& /EENIR G5 H IF5E
activities (5,299) (3,245)
Net increase in cash and cash RekBFeEEIER
equivalents AR 1,474 15,602

132 China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 21. RBERFI 2RSS
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Cost of investments in an associate, S RN g 4 N

unlisted JELE™ 6,510 6,510

Share of post-acquisition results, net of JE(FUBEZ 245 - B U
dividend received BOFFE 944 282
Impairment loss AIEEE (3,751) -
3,703 6,792

As at 31 March 2017, the Group carried out reviews of
the recoverable amount of investment in an associate. The
recoverable amount has been determined based on the
share of net asset value of the associate as at 31 March
2017. The impairment test results in the recognition of
an impairment loss of HK$3,751,000, which is expensed
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March
2017.

Details of the Group’s associate are as follows:

H%@TZ&£W$ IE EW IR Y 1R

A HMBRERREREBER - —+F
_ﬂ +—H  KREBEHEE QR A KE
SHETTES - AIREEENRENZ
T—+F =A==+ HELMBERRAZEE
FEMEBET REARERAERAAEEBRE
3,751,000 7T REBEE-ZT—+tF=A=
T-RIEFEZEEBE REMEE WK
k& o

||>Hik%

|=H

AEBEBERTZFBENAT

Nominal
Form of Place of value of
business registration/ registered Attributable equity  Principal
Name of associate structure operations capital interest to the Group activities
N EREBER M gXnd IMEAEE REBRGERAERZ ZTEXHR
2017 2016
ZE—+F —ZT—RHF
Interforce Limited Limited liability Hong Kong HK$500,000 30.00% 30.00% Trading of
("Interforce”) company electronic
products
BEHERAF BREMERAR B 500,000 7T BEEETEM
=&

The associate is indirectly held by the Company through
its wholly-owned subsidiary.

BERNRHARRIEEE BN B AR EE
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21.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONT'D)

Included in the cost of investments in an associate is
goodwill of HK$Nil (2016: HK$3,779,000) arising on
acquisition of an associate in prior year.

Summarised financial information of the Group’s

associate

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown
in the associate’s management accounts prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

The Group’s associate is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

21.

REEENT 2R (E)

REE QR ZIREKRA BRI BEFE R EE
BRARMEEAZHESEBTL(ZE— X F:
3,779,000 7T) ©

el
i

&

BENRcMBEERBME

BEAEEBERR ZMBERBIWT -
UNTHBERBMER 2N RIEFBYBR
SREAGHENE L N R ERRE 2 KE -

BHERALR -

Interforce B
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
Non-current assets SERBEE 841 1,625
Current assets MEE E 17,806 14,267
Current liabilities MENEE (6,305) (5,849)
Revenue Ug 25 137,900 120,375

Profit and total comprehensive AREEGA R E2EW LR

income for the year 2,299 823
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21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONT'D)

Summarised financial information of the Group’s
associate (CONT'D)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial

21. RBELQR 2R (E)
AEEBEAT M ENBE(H)

NERBERMERN RSB RREHER
R AR IREENHRAT

statements:
Interforce B3
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Net assets of Interforce attributable B AEGEHEEFE
to owners 12,342 10,043
Proportion of the Group's REBREB 2 EAEERLLD
ownership interest in Interforce 30% 30%
Goodwill GRS - 3,779
Carrying amount of the Group's REERERBzER 2 FEE
interest in Interforce 3,703 6,792
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22.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax (liabilities)/

22.

assets recognised and movements thereon during the

current and prior years:

Accelerated

i 3E B8

AEERBEFECHRBEE

&) AEREEBWT

EERIR(E

tax
depreciation Tax losses Others Total
INEBIETE RIEEE Hty W
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FET FET FHET
At 1 April 2015 RZZ—REF
MmA—H 1,690 16,358 210 18,258
(Charge)/credit to (;B),sFAEzE
profit or loss (37) 841 (2,308) (1,504)
At 31 March 2016 MZTE—RF
=ZA=+—H 1,653 17,199 (2,098) 16,754
(Charge)/credit to (n\), sFAEH
profit or loss 416 (12,062) 2,187 (9,459)
At 31 March 2017 R-ZE—+F
=RA=+—H 2,069 5,137 89 7,295

Note: Others mainly represented temporary difference arising

from unrealised profits on inventories.
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22.

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONT'D)

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

reporting purposes:

22.

i FIE B TE (A8 )
RRGAMBRAERLITE - ETEE
BHEAERABEYY - MIESERER R
ZEERBEBHFMT -

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Deferred tax assets EIEFIEEE 7,295 18,852
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBE & - (2,098)
7,295 16,754

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$351,655,000 (2016: HK$322,157,000)
and the Group has not recognised deferred tax asset
in respect of tax losses of HK$336,547,000 (2016:
HK$251,634,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in the unused tax losses are
losses of HK$102,972,000 (2016: HK$100,209,000) that
will expire in 2030 and losses of HK$164,162,000 (2016:
HK$164,162,000) that will expire within 20 years, other
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

RBEBRR AEB2ADRARES
8 /351,655,000 L( = T — X F:
322,157,000 7T ) o B A K f& 7 &
KRHEF R A% B W ERDHEEB
$6336,547,000% t( = T — X F:
251,634,000 L) M AIRTERRIBEE A ©
AEABREBEBREBR =2 F 55
2 B 18102,972,0008 (=T — N F
100,209,000/ 7t ) & # 7 = + 4 K T &7
2 [E518164,162,0008 L( =T — XN F ¢
164,162,000 7T ) + H fth 5 18 &5 18 7] | R
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23. INVENTORIES 23. FE
2017 2016
—Z—+F ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Finished goods UK 62,807 54,299
62,807 54,299
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense in RAEE  REeEakHEM2EREX
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other R AN H 278K AEA69,223,0008 7T
comprehensive income during the year amounted to (ZZF—"%F :322,478,000/87L) °
HK$469,223,000 (2016: HK$322,478,000).
24. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24, BWIRE - e REMEKRER
RECEIVABLES b1 |
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Trade debtors U E 5 R1E 211,186 17,273
Deposits with securities brokers BERE L2 S - 32
Consideration receivable from HE—EHBARMNERRE
disposal of a subsidiary - 81,534
Prepayments and other receivables &1 3% 18 & H b [ U BF 18 32,664 16,029
243,850 114,868
Analysed for reporting purposes as: FLEIRE DA -
Current assets MENVE B 243,395 114,559
Non-current assets JEMBEE 455 309
243,850 114,868
At the end of the reporting period, the Group pledged RMERR  FEERERBLFLLE RS
deposits with securities brokers of HK$Nil (2016: THBTL(ZF—/NF £ 32,0008 ) AIER
HK$32,000) to secure the the margin accounts with REBEREBFCLENRBSER -

securities brokers.
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24. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24,

RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

The aged analysis of trade debtors net of allowance for
doubtful debts presented based on the invoice dates at
the end of the reporting period, which approximate the
respective recognition dates, is as follows:

FEWERIE -~ e Rk HEMEWER
5 (42
RBEHR(ESERRBPRFT)RER
B2 2ERESEE(NBRERES)
ZHRER DTN

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

0 - 30 days 0&E30H 10,516 9,863
31 - 60 days 31260H 874 1,459
61 — 90 days 61290H 3,004 5,951
Over 90 days B0 H 196,792 -
211,186 17,273

The Group allows an average credit period ranging
from 30 days to 365 days to its trade customers. Before
accepting any new customers, the management will
internally assess the credit quality of the potential
customer and define appropriate credit limits.
Management closely monitors the credit quality of trade
and other receivables and considers the trade and other
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to be

of a good quality.

Included in the Group’'s trade debtors are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$6,339,000 (2016:
HK$3,824,000) which are past due as at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The directors of the Company determined that these
receivables are either due from customers of good credit
quality with no history of default or covered by credit
insurance. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

REBGETHESREPZEHEEHANT
300 E3650 - REMEMFELA - B2
BN EEEEP 2 EEEERIIVE
EZEERE EEETRYERZIRAEM

BEZESREMBURRZERRI

AEEZEVESEBEERETRRER
6,339,000 7T ( = F— X% : 3,824,000/
TU)ZEWIRE - FRBRERBSEHER
B ERKEAREHREBERE - A2
AEEHENEREREARBREEEERR
FHBEREHIZEERBREZEFPZ
FRIA o AN S0 M Btk 5 AE AR ES A (TR R

o
[s[=ling
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24.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONT’'D)

The aged analysis of trade debtors which are past due but

24.

R ARIE ~ RE R H b B W AR

H(%&)

EBHERREZEKRESREZREDT

not impaired is as follows: R
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Overdue 31 - 60 days BmHI31260H 3,313 2,301
Overdue 61 - 90 days #HI61290H 565 1,523
Overdue over 90 days 0 HAFE @90 A 2,461 -
6,339 3,824

Based on the experience of the management and

REEEE2RBEEP ZENRRE 28

repayment record of the customers, trade receivables HERMEERESFAZE S RIRE—
which are past due but not impaired and not associated ARAT U E o
with litigations are generally recoverable.
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts RIRBEES
2017 2016
—ZT—+F —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At beginning of the year F] 8,508 9,233
Impairment losses recognised EERZBIEEIE 712 683
Amount written off W - (1,408)
9,220 8,508

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade and other debtors with
an aggregated balance of HK$9,220,000 (2016:
HK$8,508,000) which have either been placed under
liguidation or in financial difficulties.
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25. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 25. Bzt tHERIE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 April HEA—H - =
Additions NE 45,156 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease B Jafz + i 7H S R E B
payments (782) -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 44,374 -
26. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 26. HEEEZRE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Equity securities, at fair value BAFES RATE
Listed in Hong Kong RER L™ 139 211
Listed outside Hong Kong REBEIN ETH 241 240
380 451
27. AMOUNTS DUE TO IMMEDIATE 27. BENEBREZERATANESZ
HOLDING COMPANY AND A DIRECTOR |
The amounts are interest-free, unsecured and repayable ERNFIEARRE  BERREEREER -
on demand.
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28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED 28. FEWREEE A R ZFIE
COMPANIES
Amounts due from related companies disclosed pursuant R IEEBCA BHEHI ) E383(1) ()& & &
to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies IR AR 2 FIBIAE ¢

Ordinance are as follows:

Maximum
Name of directors amount
having beneficial outstanding Balance at Balance at
Name interest during the year 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
FRREER R-T—+tF RIZE—RF
=1 BEERRRCESER ERESEE ZA=Z+—B#&tR ZA=+—H#&&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
FEEEELEREMERE Wang Jing
BR QA T& 9,989 9,989 -
Sinostar Asset Management Wang Xing Qiao
Limited TES 852 852 -
10,841 -
All the above advances are unsecured, interest-free and B geEER RRAEETEER
have no fixed repayment terms. R e
29. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 29. RITHEERRE
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group RITHEFRE2PEASEMBERS - U
and bank deposits which carry interest at an average rate RZFHEFERNEAE(ZT—RF
of 0.01% (2016: 0.01%) per annum. 0.01E) 2 RITIFH °
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30. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES

30. BENRERESER

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade payables FERE SR1E 11,181 5,855
Note payable and accrued interest FERT IR R EETFI S 7,207 5,932
Royalty and withholding tax payable  FEfTEFE R FEMF 735 944

Consideration payable for acquisition FEfTURBE B A KRB
of subsidiaries 39,996 20,383
Other creditors and accrued expenses  E i f& < BR 1B % B 515 5% 52,872 55,331
111,991 88,445

Analysed for reporting purposes as: FERBEMNDTA

Current liabilities mBEE 111,991 73,434
Non-current liabilities FERBEE - 15,011
111,991 88,445

Note payable with the principal amount of US$Nil
(equivalent to HK$Nil) (2016: US$697,000 (equivalent
to HK$5,434,000)) is unsecured and carries interest
at Nil% (2016: 6%) per annum. At 31 March 2017,
HK$111,991,000 and HK$Nil (2016: HK$73,434,000 and
HK$15,011,000) are classified as current and non-current
liabilities, respectively.

Included in other creditors is an amount of HK$Nil (2016:
HK$15,011,000) which is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable upon expiry of revolving credit facility granted
to a subsidiary of the Company in July 2017. Accordingly,
the amount is classified as a non-current liability.

REBRAEET(HERETET) (ZE—X
% : 697,000 7T (FHE 5,434,000 7T ) )
CENEZEREERERFNEREE(ZZE—
RE:6E)FB - R _EBE—+F=A=+
—H 111,991,000 T REET(ZF —
7NEF 173,434,000 7CF115,011,000%7T)
AP ERTBRIETBHAEE -

ATAEMEMEREEZEET(ZE—XF
15,011,000 L) 2 RBAEER - 288
ERZE—tEFELARTFARA—KMBR
Al BEREEREDHATER - At - %218
REWOBRFETHAEE -
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30. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES
(CONT'D)

The aged analysis of trade creditors presented based on

30. ENREREFER(E)

RBERRREZTAHLI 2 ENE SRR

the invoice dates at the end of the reporting period is as ZHRESTIT
follows:

2017 2016
—ZT—tF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
0 — 30 days 0%30H 10,055 5,154
31 - 60 days 31260H 380 9
61 — 90 days 61£290H - 153
Over 90 days im0 H 746 539
11,181 5,855

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90

REEmZFHEEHRR0A -

days.
31. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED 31. BERB@B AR ZRE
COMPANIES
The amounts are interest-free, unsecured and repayable ENFEAERE - EIEENIZEREE -
on demand.
32. BORROWINGS 32. fEE
2017 2016
—E—t & —ET—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Other borrowings, secured HthBEEREE 99,500 119,903
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32.

33.

BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

The borrowings are repayable as follows:

32.

L ::
w A
: Ua
RE
o
7{&/

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FET
Within one year —FEZ7R 20,477 11,990
More than one year but not exceeding BB — F AT EBBME
two years 79,023 23,981
More than two year but not exceeding B ERAN BB AT
five years - 83,932
99,500 119,903
Less: Amount due within one year shown i : BR—FREEN RS
under current liabilities afE (20,477) (11,990)
Amount due after one year AR —FRERENFIE 79,023 107,913
As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s borrowings are fixed- RZZE—tF=A=+—H AEEZEE
rate borrowings and bears interest at 10.0% per annum RBEEMNEEREZRFNEI1I00E(ZE—
(2016: 8.5%). The borrowings are secured by investment N 85E)FE c ZREBEUEREKRE
properties under construction of HK$168,546,000 (2016: 12%168,546,0008 TIE A ER(ZT —R
HK$188,967,000). F :188,967,000/7T) ©
CONVERTIBLE BONDS 33. ARRES

On 30 July 2014, the Company issued 3% coupon
convertible bonds (the “Bonds”) at a principal amount
of HK$75,000,000 maturing on 30 July 2017 to the
immediate holding company of the Company. The Bonds
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and the Company
agrees to guarantee payment of all sums payable in
relation to the Bonds. Interest of 3% per annum will be
paid half-annually up until the settlement date.

RZE—WF+LA=1+H RAFAEEKAF
ZEEERABEITASEERT75,000,000
BTR-_E—tF+tA=+BEHZ3EE
EAMBRESR([EH] - EHABITEE
BARRRERES 2 —VEMREH LA
EHER - REMNEIEAHE 2 B ETE
FXfH—K BEEHEEEHIE -
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33.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT’'D) 33. ARRMES(E)
The Bonds are convertible, at the option of the bond RZZE—NFELA=+THERASZBEEE
holder, into ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the HE(BEER)ZEMAEBRE  E55AA
Company at a conversion price of HK$0.23 (after EERRRETR2IET(EAEARA
adjustment for capital reorganisation) per share, subject BRE)BEFERASAATERMEE0.01E
to anti-dilutive adjustments, at any time on or after T2 BRI - AIETRESEFE - [RIFRTF
30 July 2014 up to and including the maturity date. FEM - SR E R - TRIAQRER
Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and FEBIREASEMN100%EE HAREB K2
cancelled, the outstanding Bonds will be redeemed by the (EEAI
Company at 100% of its principal amount on the maturity
date.
At initial recognition, the Bonds are split into an equity RV THERE EBEFARERS
component of HK$61,480,000 and a liability component 61,480,0007’%7E)§2Efﬁu 7752,056,0007%
of HK$52,056,000. The liability component is determined T BEHDDIRBEERFANE16.21%
based on the present value of the estimated future cash (AMEBEUEETRLRERBET ENFERE
flows discounted at an effective interest rate of 16.21% EREs7AUeRTAZ FHKREE - HB
per annum, being the average yield of similar financial .ﬁ)\m ABEURBEREZE - ARIAER
instruments with similar credit rating and structure but Kme Rk 2 T ae s 8 ) Bh R il 5T R 2K
without the call conversion option, which incorporated fﬁé??uuizfﬁﬁﬁﬁ%rﬁ o
appropriate adjustments to reflect possible impact of
country factors, firm specific risk and liquidity risk.
The equity component is presented as convertible bonds RZE—tFRZE—AR"F=ZA=+—H
reserve in equity, whereas the liability component BRI ERITBRRESFFERERAZE
is classified under current liabilities and non-current 5 MBEXS SRS BEERDEERIE
liabilities at 31 March 2017 and 2016 respectively. MENEE -
The movement of the liability component of the Bonds for RAFEEHFZBENLD 2EHHI|WMT
the current year is set out below:

HK$'000

FAT

At 1 April 2015 M-E—REMA—A 56,875
Imputed interest expense for the year EW@QE:?‘NJE'\Eﬁi 9,774
Coupon interest paid BNEE (2,250)
At 31 March 2016 RZEB-—RF=RA=+— 64,399
Imputed interest expense for the year ilﬁqﬁﬁﬂ BEX 10,031
Coupon interest paid ERNEER (2,256)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+tF=H=+—H 72,174
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33.

34.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONT'D)

None of the Bonds has been converted into ordinary

33. ARKRES(E)

RMBFEAMEREFBRAAAAERE

shares of the Company during both years. fi% o
SHARE CAPITAL 34. R
Nominal value Number of
per share shares Amount
BREE f&1n &8 k-
HK$ HK$'000
BT FET
Authorised: EERA
At 1 April 2015 R-_ZE—HFMNA—H 0.10 5,000,000,000 500,000
Consolidation of shares &1 & ot (3,750,000,000) -
0.40 1,250,000,000 500,000
Reduction of share capital  B&ZAEIE - (487,500)
At 31 March 2016 RZZE—REFER
and 2017 —E—+HF=A=1+—H 0.01 1,250,000,000 12,500
Issued and fully paid: BETREERA
At 1 April 2015 R-E—AFWMA—H 0.10 2,433,808,485 243,381
Placing of shares B & A& 17 0.10 486,760,000 48,676
2,920,568,485 292,057
Consolidation of shares f&1n & oF (2,190,426,364) -
0.40 730,142,121 292,057
Reduction of share capital P& 7 1) Sk - (284,756)
0.01 730,142,121 7,301
Issue of shares upon RAFBERFEITIRG
open offer 0.01 2,920,568,484 29,206
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RFER
and 2017 —Z—+HF=A=+—H 0.01 3,650,710,605 36,507
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35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine
("SMC”), a 51.34% (2016: 51.39%)

owned subsidiary of the Company

Company, Inc.

SMC’s share option scheme was approved by SMC’s
shareholders at the special meeting held on 6 September
2001 (the "SMC Scheme”). The SMC Scheme was
developed to provide a means whereby the directors and
selected employees, officers, consultants, and advisors
of SMC may be granted incentive or non-qualified stock
options to purchase common stock of SMC. The SMC
Scheme authorises an aggregate of 1,950,000 shares of
SMC's common stock and a maximum of 450,000 shares

to any one individual in any one fiscal year.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each participant
in any 12 month period up to the date of the grant will
be 300,000 shares.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option is any period as determined by the Board
of SMC, which will not be more than 10 years (or 5 years
in the case of a holder with 10% or more of the common
stock) from the date on which the option is granted. Each
option vested in one year from the date of grant.

The subscription price of the share options is determined
by SMC's Stock Option Committee, which consists of
two or more directors chosen by the Board of SMC. The
subscription price of the share options will be no less
than the closing price of SMC's shares on the offer date (or,
if granted to a holder of 10% or more of the common
stock, the subscription price will be no less than 110% of
the closing price of SMC's shares on the offer date).

The movements of the share options granted to directors
of the Company and employees of the Group pursuant to
the SMC Scheme were as follows:
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BERAESTE

XA FEFAE134% (= B — X F:
51.39%) ¥ #= 2 Kt B 2 ®The Singing
Machine Company, Inc. ([SMCJ) 2 B
T E

SMCZ BEREEIR FNAAR
Eﬁﬁzk%%%ﬁ@ﬂ%smcﬁx%m;&
([SmMCEHEl]) - wc%%?ﬁ%%wc%%

REkEES  RRAE - BRRBHAL
H2 b o M {5 #m%ﬁ%u.m%smc SN
J0%& o SMCET &I S 1,950,000 SMC
Timk  MEBRATREVRFEERE
450,000/ 815 e

—EF2E—

RELBHAWI2EAARN - &2 M0
P B IE ma 1T Mg T BT 2 = D L
B # A300,0000% °

BREAITEHREHASMCESRBRTE © &
TR AR B R BBI10F (S ARE
LT@EKRI0%FU EZ2FEAE A AIRSEF) -
EEREABRHAHE—FEEE -

B%H%Eéz RBEEHMCREREZBE R

ZEECASMCESERBATKE 2 MBS
LAL§$ZEW cHEREZRBERTER
SMCERIARBLH B HIZ W E (WL E T
BELERIOIUNLEZEBEATE * R

BEBEBTNEASMCIERONELH B HKHE
Z110%)
RIESMCHE  AMARRESE N ANEEHRE
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35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONT'D)

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. (“SMC”), a 51.34% (2016: 51.39%)
owned subsidiary of the Company (CONT'D)

35. BRERE(E)

XD EFAES134% (= T — KX F:
51.39%) ¥ #= = Kt B 2 ®The Singing
Machine Company, Inc. ([SMC]) Z &

Exercise at beginning

ESHEI(E)
Number of share options
BREZE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
during the during the during at end of
price of the year year year the year the year

Date of grant A8 TEE FPHATRE FRERYE FRETE FRAEBEXY FRERTE
For the year ended BE-Z—+#

31 March 2017 ZAZT-HLEE
10 April 2006 ZET R FEA+A 0.33 42,000 - - - 42,000
31 March 2007 —EE+F=A=Z+—H 0.93 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2008 —EEN\E=A=+—H 0.45 120,000 - - - 120,000
31 March 2009 ZETNF=A=1+—H 0.11 120,000 - - - 120,000
31 March 2010 —Z-TF=ZA=+-H 0.03 60,000 - - - 60,000
29 October 2010 —ZE-ZF+AZTNE 0.06 520,000 - - - 520,000
31 March 2011 —Z——%=A=+—H 0.04 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2012 —T-—-Ff=ZA=Z+-H 0.12 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2013 —E-=f=A=+—H 0.18 60,000 - - - 60,000
1 July 2013 —T-=FtA—H 0.21 580,000 - - - 580,000
31 March 2014 —T-MFE=ZA=+—H 0.16 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2015 “E-RE=A=+—H 0.17 60,000 - - - 60,000
1 July 2015 T 0 = 0.17 25,000 - - - 25,000
31 March 2016 —E-AF=A=1—H 0.24 145,000 - - - 145,000

1,972,000 - - - 1,972,000

Exercisable at end of RERA T

the year 1,802,000
Weighted average  JEFII1TMHE (ET)

exercise price (US$) 0.19 - - - 0.19
Holders of the share BERIEFEADTMT

options are analysed

as follows:

Directors E 80,000 - - - 80,000

Employees RE 1,892,000 - - - 1,892,000

1,972,000 - - - 1,972,000
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONT'D) 35. BREE(E)
Share option scheme of The Singing Machine XN TFHEBE5134% (= F — K F:
Company, Inc. (“SMC”), a 51.34% (2016: 51.39%) 51.39%) ¥ % Z [t B 2 ®The Singing
owned subsidiary of the Company (CONT'D) Machine Company, Inc. ([SMC]) Z &
EHEI(E)
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
Exercise at beginning  during the  during the  during the at end of
price  of the year year year year the year
Date of grant B AH TfEE FHERT ERERE FRETR FRAEAN FRERTE
For the year ended HZE-T— X4
31 March 2016 =A=+—HLLEE
9 May 2005 —EERERANA 0.60 34,000 - - (34,000) -
31 March 2006 —ETRFZA=1+—H 0.32 60,000 - (20,000) (40,000) -
10 April 2006 “EEXNENATH 0.33 42,000 - - - 42,000
31 March 2007 —EZ+FZA=1+—H 0.93 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2008 ZTT\F=A=1+—H 0.45 120,000 - - - 120,000
31 March 2009 ZEENE=ZRA=+—H 0.1 120,000 - - - 120,000
31 March 2010 —Z-ZF=A=+—-H 0.03 60,000 - - - 60,000
29 October 2010 “E-ZFTAZTAAE 0.06 520,000 - - - 520,000
31 March 2011 —E——%=R=+—H 0.04 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2012 —E--F#=ZA=+—H 0.12 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2013 —Z-=f=A=+—H 0.18 60,000 - - - 60,000
1 July 2013 “Z-=%+tH—H 0.21 580,000 - - - 580,000
31 March 2014 —E-ME=R=1+—H 0.16 60,000 - - - 60,000
31 March 2015 —E-RF=R=1+—H 0.17 60,000 - - - 60,000
1 July 2015 “E-RE+A-H 0.17 - 25,000 - - 25,000
31 March 2016 —E-RFZA=1—H 0.24 - 145,000 - - 145,000
1,896,000 170,000 (20,000) (74,000) 1,972,000
Exercisable at end of RFERA FITE
the year 1,802,000

Weighted average  fIEFH{THEE(ET)
exercise price (US$) 0.20 0.23 0.32 0.45 0.19

Holders of the share BERIEZEADHTMOT
options are analysed

as follows:
Directors S 80,000 - - - 80,000
Employees 3= 1,816,000 170,000 (20,000) (74,000) 1,892,000

1,896,000 170,000 (20,000) (74,000) 1,972,000
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35.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONT’'D)

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. (“SMC”), a 51.34% (2016: 51.39%)
owned subsidiary of the Company (CONT'D)

The above options were granted for an exercise period of
nine years from the date on which the options are vested.

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value
of the services received is measured based on the Black-
Scholes pricing model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

35.

BRETE(E)

A DT HBE5134% (= F — X £
51.39%) # &= Z Mf B 2 " The Singing
Machine Company, Inc. ([SMCJ) 2B &
RESTEI(E)
NEERkERBRERE B BENALFAT
fE o

ERBIRB MR LBREZ AFEIZ2EM
RLBkE s A TEFE - IRERBZA
FENEROR -FRNTEERAE -

BlEz A FERKRR

Grant date R B 1.7.2015 31.3.2016
Fair value at measurement date (US$) RET2EBHZAFEERL) 0.11 0.24
Share price (US$) MRME(ET) 0.17 0.32
Exercise price (US$) TEB(ET) 0.17 0.24
Expected volatility TERHR 107.61% 119.80%
Expected option life (years) TR BB AR EARR (£F) 3 3
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B K 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 42 7 [ F R 0.26% 0.59%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the SMC's share price over the previous
one year. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the
effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

The Group recognised total expense of HK$Nil (2016:
HK$130,000) for the year in relation to share options
granted by SMC.

FEEHRBIRASMCRIBE —F 2 E LK
EBRBETE - ZBRAMKAZEAHRER
BEREREMS - RAAEREN - 1T
REMTREBEAZZEEMELAE - £
B 2o ABRREPIHAFEMBTEXE
N2

REBREANRSMCIRH 2 BT HEFER
X EEATBT(ZZ— /7 F 130,000
HBIT) e
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36.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the amount due to immediate holding
company, borrowings and convertible bonds disclosed in
notes 27, 32 and 33,
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the

respectively net of cash and cash

Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

152 China Sinostar Group Company Limited Annual Report 2017

36.

EXEBERE

AEEEREERNUBRASE 2 BB
B ANEREBLCEBRESARER
REHZEAL - NEE 7 BEREEFF—
B o

AEBzEARBERFEH(BRENEER

? f‘-/‘\

BIFRIE )R 0 BtEE27 ~ 32 %33R
B2 ERRABRERES  KRRaEEAS S

BERe LA EEMFELES  2FC
BT R
ARBEZREHMELEERRE - FHERR

EEN &0 EEERELARANEGEE
AIEBEAR - ARERBBHRETREN
CIEAREITHESIEOR BB R TE
HERERERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE_FT—tF=A=1T—HIEFE

37.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 31 March 2016, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in NEMRAREKHEEFRAA
from an independent third party for a cash consideration
of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to HK$35,860,000).
Benxi Weining is currently engaged in operation and

A (“Benxi Weining”)

management of a hydroelectric power station in the
PRC. The transaction has been accounted for using the
acquisition method. The acquisition is part of the on-
going expansion strategy of the Group with the aim of
diversifying its operations and broadening its source of
revenue.

On 23 August 2016, the Group acquired the entire
equity interest in K EREKBRAGHTRKIBEERD
Al (“Benxi Manchu”) from an independent third party
for a cash consideration of RMB36,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$41,886,000).
in operation and management of a hydroelectric power

Benxi Manchu is currently engaged

station in the PRC. The transaction has been accounted
for using the acquisition method. The acquisition is part
of the on-going expansion strategy of the Group with
the aim of diversifying its operations and broadening its
source of revenue.

37.

L&E%Bﬁ%ﬁﬂ
R-ZZE—XREF=ZA=+—"8 ' A&£E8MN
/& R E AR 30,000,000 ( HE R
35,860,000/ 7T ) (A — & W 8 = H WA
BMBEKNBEERARD(TRERE])
ZAﬁBHQ% c BRIFERERREEEKA

BERzEERERE - WEARSERKIEE
)\ﬁﬁ CWEEHEBASERKEREREZ

CUHEREBZ T RARRERRZ
ET:T: °

RZE—R"RFNAZ+=ZH AEEBEU
" e R E AR 36,000,000 %5 R
41,886,000/ 70) M — & B 5 = F EE A
BREEBAGNRKNEEERAA(AE
Eimik]) 2 2 ERE o B ATZOR R &R F
BB KNBERzEERERE - AR S
BIRKREEAR - WESEBAEERAE
BEEZ— LWHEREBZTEREER
ﬁé%fﬁzgifﬁ: °
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37.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT'D)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired as at its date of acquisition is as follows:

37. WEKWEBLAR(ZE)

REEZBEREBAIHSNEERBBEZAF
(ERUNNE

Benxi Weining Benxi Manchu

TERE IOE R
HK$'000 HK$'000
Net assets acquired: CWRBEEFE FHT FHET
Fair value of identifiable assets acquired RESESIEZ B
at the date of obtaining control was BRI HAE E
as follows: ZRAFEWNT
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE KK 35,781 16,638
Bank balances and cash RITHEBER2 79 374
Goodwill B - 24,874
35,860 41,886
Consideration transferred, satisfied by cash LAIR& X8 EEAE 15,477 15,125
Deferred consideration included in other FFARBBE 2 H M
payables in current liabilities JERRIB 2 BLERE 20,383 26,761
35,860 41,886
Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash ERAUWEz2Re RS
equivalents in respect of acquisition: ZEYRLEFEIN
Cash consideration paid BB RE (15,477) (15,125)
Bank balances and cash acquired BUEERITESREE 79 374
(15,398) (14,751)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the acquisition of
Benxi Weining has no contribution to the Group’s revenue
or loss in the consolidated financial statements.

Had the acquisition of Benxi Weining been completed on
1 April 2015, the Group's revenue for the year would
have been HK$425,922,000, and loss for the year would
have been HK$14,211,000. The pro forma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 April 2015, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.
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37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT’D)

Had the acquisition of Benxi Manchu been completed on
1 April 2016, the Group’s revenue for the year would
have been HK$3,082,000, and loss for the year would
have been HK$18,391,000. The pro forma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 April 2016, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

37. WEKEBLAR(Z)

MARREORBESEEER 22— FN
A—BEK AIXEE2FEREH R
3,082,000/ 7T + F/EE1#E/318,391,000/%
Lo BEEERERKA AN X —ER
BAASEER T XFMA—HEKREE
BEREGH NS RICEREE - ITERE K
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38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. EAREIE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect HEFTNERELEETHHRE
of acquisition and construction BRE2EBUEBREEME
of properties contracted for but 0= WiNG-a
not provided in the consolidated
financial statements 6,207 5,084
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39. LEASE COMMITMENTS

Commitments under operating leases

As lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises as follows:

39.

HEAE

REHEEAE

ERABRA

RBERR - REMALYE 2 AT HEL
BHRY  AEEHRRKEBRENRZ AR
mr

2017 2016

—ZE—+F —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Within one year —F 2N 10,035 4,484
In the second to fifth years, inclusive Z—ZERER @ = 20,294 14,830
30,329 19,314

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for its office and warehouses. Leases are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years (2016:
from one to five years) and rentals are fixed over the
lease terms.
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40.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following related party

transactions.

(a)

March 2017, the
Company paid coupon interest of HK$2,256,000
(2016: HK$2,250,000) to the immediate holding
company of the Company.

During the year ended 31

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, Mr. Wang lJing,
a director of the Company, and his wife have
provided personal guarantees to a bank in respect
of the Group’s borrowings as at 31 March 2017
and 2016.

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, ultimate holding
company of the Company has provided corporate
guarantee to a bank in respect of the Group’s
borrowings as at 31 March 2017 and 2016.

Details of the remuneration of key management
personnel, who are the directors, during the year
are set out in note 13. Key management personnel
are deemed to be the members of the Board of
Directors of the Company which has responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the Group.

40. BB RS
REBFIZATHEB ARG -

HE-_ZT—tF=ZA=+—HLHF
B AARMARR ZEEERA
A M EE2,256,0008 0 (=& —
7NEF 12,250,000 7T) °
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RITIR BB AR ©
RZE—+ER_T—RFE=ZA=
T—B  AAFR&EEIERDBRA
FER-_Z—F+FRZZT-RE=
A=+—BmERARITEMEDE
BIR -
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41.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41.

AATAR=ZB=1+—B 28K

OF THE COMPANY AS AT 31 MARCH OIS
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 3,521 -
Investments in subsidiaries B RIRE - -
Amount due from subsidiaries N NEIE - 248,813
3,521 248,813
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Deposits and prepayments & RIBRFEIA 3,317 243
Amounts due from subsidiaries eI M B A B3k I8 343,425 134,530
Amount due from a related company FEU — R B E A B FUA 852 -
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary FE U — B KB A A RIA 58,031 -
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 716 206,784
406,341 341,557
CURRENT LIABILITIES prEIN=NE
Accrued charges EstER 1,465 3,115
Amounts due to subsidiaries JFEASHBT BB A B FA 59 161
Amount due to a director B E B IR 140 140
Amount due to a related company FE — R B E A R F0E 1,587 -
Amount due to immediate holding company B EEER A FHRIE 5,898 176,687
Convertible bonds AR ESH 72,174 -
81,323 180,103
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 325,018 161,454
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERARDEE 328,539 410,267
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBER
Convertible bonds AR ESH - 64,399
NET ASSETS EEFE 328,539 345,868
EQUITY R
Issued capital BETRA 36,507 36,507
Reserves s 292,032 309,361
TOTAL EQUITY ERER 328,539 345,868
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY AS AT 31 MARCH
(CONT'D)

The amounts of the Company’s reserves and the

41.

EKRARAR=ZA=+—Bz28#%
MRz (&)

ARBBE_Z—tF=A=+—HILFE

)

movements therein for the year ended 31 March 2017 are CEBESERHEFHBEROT
as follows:
Convertible Capital
Share bonds redemption Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total
maR B
B3 6E EHfHE BEfHE EHER ZitER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
At 1 April 2015 RZE-RFNA-A 24,000 61,365 292,448 99,172 (646,181) (169,196)
Loss and other comprehensive FERBRAMZARY
expense for the year - - - - (34,514) (34,514)
Placing of shares ) 11,682 - - - - 11,682
Transactions costs incurred RERDFEEZRHER
in connection with placing
of shares (759) - - - - (759)
Reduction of share capital EAERTHRARD
upon capital reorganisation - - 284,756 - - 284,756
Issue of shares upon open offer RERE RNET 221,963 - - - - 221,963
Transaction costs incurred in RABEMEEIRHKA
connection with open offer (4,571) - - - - (4,571)
At 31 March 2016 and RZE-"E=A=+-H
1 April 2016 k=2-~FMA—H 252,315 61,365 577,204 99,172 (680,695) 309,361
Loss and other comprehensive FEFBREMZEMY
expense for the year - - - - (17,329) (17,329
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+E=A=1—H 252,315 61,365 571,204 99,172 (698,024) 292,032
42. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL 42. B EmR2HBLE

STATEMENTS

These consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30
June 2017.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hEFEMBHE
Year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=1+—HLEE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—E-=F ZT—MF —T-HF —T-RF ZB—LtHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FAT FET
RESULTS 45
Revenue WA 515,408 366,953 381,863 425,523 632,015
Loss before taxation W 75 A S 18 (65,776)  (199,046)  (245,868) (14,495) (17,447)
Taxation % 7,389 9,682 (1,263) (1,504) (21,559)
Loss for the year FEEE (58,387)  (189,364)  (247,131) (15,999) (39,006)
Attributable to: THA TG FA
Owners of the Company  AAFEAR A (69,829)  (193,036)  (246,934) (22,243) (46,055)
Non-controlling interests  JEIEARHERS 11,442 3,672 197 6,244 7,049
(58,387)  (189,364)  (246,737) (15,999) (39,006)
At 31 March
R=B=+—H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
= —E-NF ZT—HF ZE—RF E—+tHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FAT FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES XEREE
Total assets WA E 685,728 530,375 280,040 829,444 679,829
Total liabilities FER=RE 201,004 192,249 182,740 450,567 364,965
484,724 338,126 97,300 378,877 314,864
Attributable to owners KAGIESR AEIS
of the Company I8 472,893 321,716 82,044 357,136 285,344
Non-controlling interests  3EIZA&HERS 11,831 16,410 15,256 21,741 29,520
484,724 338,126 97,300 378,877 314,864
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